
 
 

AGENDA & Notice of Work Session & Regular Meeting of City Council and 
Urban Renewal Agency  

The City Council and Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Newport will hold a work 
session at 12:00 noon, on Monday, February 2, 2009, in Conference Room “A” at City 
Hall. The Council’s regular meeting will begin at 6:00 P.M., on Monday, February 2, 
2009, with the Urban Renewal Agency meeting to begin at 7:00 P.M.  If there are still 
Council agenda items remaining at the conclusion of the Urban Renewal Agency 
meeting, the Council meeting will continue to its conclusion. These meeting are to be 
held in the Newport City Hall Council Chambers, 169 S.W. Coast Highway, Newport, 
Oregon 97365.  A copy of the meeting agenda follows. 
 
The work session and meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities.  A 
request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired, or for other accommodations for 
persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to 
Peggy Hawker, City Recorder (541)574-0613. 
 
The Council and Urban Renewal Agency reserves the right to add or delete items as 
needed, to change the order of the agenda, and to discuss any other business deemed 
necessary at the time of the work session and meeting.  Any agenda item from “Action 
Items” that does not require a public hearing may be moved up in the agenda order. 

WORK SESSION AGENDA 
12:00 Noon 

City Council and Urban Renewal Agency 
 

I. Review regular agenda items  
II. Special Event/Activity Grant Fund 

Application—Event for Food Share……………………………..Pages 5-17 
(Shaddox) 

 
 

REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 
6:00 P.M. 

City Council 
 

Any person wishing to speak on any item should complete the sign-in form and hand it 
to the City Recorder. 



I. Roll Call 
 
II. Consent Calendar 

 
A. Approval of minutes from the work session, executive 

session and regular meeting of January 20, 2009, 
and special meeting of January 23, 2009……….…………Pages 18-34 
(Atkinson) 
 

 B. OLCC Application received for SKW Brewing, 56 
  SW Cottage Street, Brewery Public House……………….Pages 35-36 
  (Miranda) 
 
 C. OLCC Application received for SKW Brewing, 1658 
  N. Coast Hwy, New Outlet (second application)...………...Pages 37-38 
  (Miranda) 
 
 D. OLCC Application received for Western Beverage, 
  130 SE 32nd Street, South Beach, Wholesale Malt 
  Beverage……………………………………………………Pages 39-40 
  (Miranda)  
 
 E. OLCC Application received for Bay 839, located at 
  839 SW Bay Blvd, New Outlet…………………………….Pages 41-42 
  (Miranda) 
 
III. Council Members’ Reports and Comments 
 
IV. Officers’ Reports  
 
 A. Mayor’s Report 
  1. Committee appointments…………………………Pages 43-46 
 B. City Manager Report 
 C. City Attorney Report 
 
V. Discussion items and presentations to Council (Items that do not require 

immediate council action, such as presentations, discussion of potential future 
action items)  

 
 A. Presentation of audit for fiscal year 2007-08 by Pauly,  
  Rogers & Company……………………………………….Page 47 
  (Riessbeck) 
 
 B. Update from Friends of the Aquatic Center……………...Pages 48-50 
  (Shaddox) 
 

C. Reverse 911 presentation by Rich Glasgow,  
911 LinCom Director …………………………………….Page 51 



 D. Presentation from David Richcreek & Dylan McEntee 
  with regards to next year’s Newport Storm  
  Basketball Tournament…………………………………..Pages 52-59 
  (Shaddox) 
 
VI. Public Comment (Normal maximum per person 3 minutes, but may be adjusted 

based on number of persons wishing to comment.  Any person who does not get 
an opportunity to comment will be allowed to comment during Agenda Item 
VIII.)  NOTE:  If the public comment portion of the meeting has not started by 
6:45 p.m., the Council will end discussion of other items and proceed to public 
comment at that time.  

 
 
7:00 P.M. 

 
NEWPORT URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY 

Follows Regular Council Meeting 
REGULAR URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY MEETING AGENDA 

Page 60 
 
I. Call to order & roll call 
 
II. Consent Calendar  
 

A. Approval of minutes from the last regular 
meeting of January 20, 2008…..…………………………Pages 61-62  

  (Atkinson) 
 
III. Public Comment (Comments from anyone wishing to address the Agency on a 

matter that is not on the agenda.  Please limit comments to three minutes)  
 
IV. Action items (Items expected to result in motions, resolutions, orders or 

ordinances)  
 
A. Resolution regarding substantial No. 5 Amendment 

to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan & Report……..Pages 63-65 
 (Bassingthwaite) 

 
V. Adjournment 
 
 
(Following Urban Renewal Agenda items, return to regularly scheduled Council 
Agenda)…………………………………………………………………….Page 66 
 
 
 
 



VII. Action items (Items expected to result in motions, resolutions,  
orders or ordinances)  
 
A. Ordinance adopting substantial No. 5 Amendment to the 
 South Beach Urban Renewal Plan & Report……………..Pages 67-114 
 (Bassingthwaite) 
 
B. Consideration of ordinance adopting new code provision 
 to limit the number of garage sales……………………….Pages 115-117 
 (Firestone) 
 
C. Special Event/Activity Grant Fund Application 
 Eastern Oregon University-Northwest Poets’ 
 Conference………………………………………..……….Pages 118-122 
 (Hawker) 
 
D. Consideration of Order Concurring in Vacation of 
 Way of Necessity by the Lincoln County Board of 
 Commissioners…..………………………………………..Pages 123-129 
 (Firestone) 
 
E. Resolution authorizing the sale of general obligation 
 bonds for Water Treatment Plant and other water 
 system improvements……………………………………..Pages 130-134 
 (Riessbeck) 
 

VIII. Public Comment (Additional time for public comment – 5 minutes per speaker) 
 
IX. Unfinished Items  
 
X. Adjournment 
 



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



January 20, 2009 
Noon 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
 
Councilors present: Bain, Bertuleit, Brusselback, Kilbride, McConnell, Patrick and 

Obteshka. 
 
Staff present: Shaddox, Firestone, Bassingthwaite, Protiva, Smith, Wilson, Ritzman, 

Riessbeck, Teem, and Atkinson. 
 
Council discussed the following items: 

 
1. It was noted than an executive session would be held at the end of this work session.   
2. CERT Certificates of Appreciation would be distributed this evening. 
3. Presentation for former Councilor’s Peggy Sabanskas and Larry Henson. 
4. The consent calendar for this evening’s meeting.  Mayor Bain noted in the January 5th 

minutes, for both the noon work session and the regular evening minutes, under the 
Chamber of Commerce request for a fee waiver for wastewater removal, the term 
“removal” should actually read “disposal.” 

5. A few questions with regards to accounts paid.   
6. The status of the proposed surveillance cameras to be purchased by the Police 

Department. 
7. Obteshka will give an update on the Nye Beach Parking District meeting. 
8. Kilbride will report on the most recent COG meeting he attended in Albany. 
9. Bertuleit will report on last week’s Airport Committee meeting. 
10. Discussed the Airport grant request for the Airport Beacon Tower replacement, and 

reprogramming of funds included in the 2008/09 budget intended for new/additional 
aircraft hangars.   

11. Brusselback reported he would be attending his first Parks & Recreation Committee 
meeting tomorrow as liaison from the Council, so his report would occur at the 
Council’s next meeting. 

12. Brusselback indicated he had a few procedural items he would like discussed: 
(a) Length of evening meeting presentations – limit to 15 minutes. 
(b) Current presentation podium not very workable, requested a standing podium for 

presenters 
(c) Microphones have too much feedback 
(d) Providing lunch for Council work sessions be reinstated 

13. Patrick reported on the presentation before Lincoln County Board of Commissioners       
on Amendment 5 of the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan.  She said Bassingthwaite 

      did an excellent job presenting before the commission.  A discussion ensued on the 
      process that will ensue to have the Amendment move forward and become adopted. 

18



14. McConnell said he would be reporting this evening on three different committee 
meetings he attended: Lincoln Community Land Trust, Oregon Coast Council for the 
Arts, and Destination Newport Committee. 

15. Bain reported on child care being provided by the Lincoln County Housing Authority 
at their Ocean Spray facility on Nye Street.  He said there could be an opportunity of 
having the Housing Authority work with the group from the Association of Family 
and Community Education that plans to open a child care facility in Toledo.   

16. Bain indicated he missed a committee reappointment at the last Council meeting, and 
would be reappointing Chuck Forinash to continue serving on the Bike and Pedestrian 
Committee.  It was also noted that there is a vacancy on this committee, as well as the 
Airport, and the vacancies need to be advertised. Bain also noted the Planning 
Commission position is open until this Friday, January 23rd, and he will plan on 
filling that vacancy at the Council’s February 2nd meeting.   

17. Shaddox asked the Council to consider two upcoming meetings. The first would be a 
mid-year budget review, and he proposed holding it on Friday, January 30th at 1:00 
p.m. He indicated members of the Budget Committee would also be invited to attend. 
David Allen, Chair of the Budget Committee, would be attending the evening 
meeting to make a brief presentation on the proposed budget schedule and committee 
involvement.  Shaddox also proposed a Council goal setting session be scheduled for 
Friday, February 13th from 9 a.m. to 4 p.m.  Council requested that Shaddox be the 
facilitator for this goal session. 

18. Shaddox gave an update on scheduling the water bond sale, and had Finance Director 
Riessbeck explain the process the City is taking. 

19. Ritzman gave an update on the Bay Front Project, and a proposed timeline. Ritzman 
explained with the addition of undergrounding utilities, the project has become more 
involved. 

20. Firestone reported on a meeting he attended last Friday with SeaPort Airlines, and 
representatives from Astoria and the State.  He indicated there could be a need for a 
special Council meeting next week to consider a revised agreement with SeaPort.  
Once the draft agreement has been prepared, Firestone will make sure a copy is 
forwarded to Council. 

21. Items to be discussed at the evening meeting will include: (1) the special 
events/activity grant application form; grant funds for the repair of the Airport beacon 
tower; the Nye Beach Holiday event report; as well as the child care request through 
the OSU Extension Service. 

22. Discussed Amendment 5 to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan.  Bassingthwaite 
will give a brief update on the process at tonight’s meeting. 

23. Chamber request for funding an extension of the shuttle service offered on Saturday 
following the Seafood and Wine Festival. 

24. Scheduling of annual reports from the Chamber and OCCA at an upcoming Council 
meeting in February. 

25. Adoption of a new Municipal Code Chapter 6.60 regulating the release of towed and 
impounded vehicles. 

26. Proposed ordinance to change the allocation of room tax proceeds that must be 
expended on tourism promotion or tourism facilities. 

27. Special Event Application received for the Newport Marathon. 

19



28. An amendment to the Retirement Plan, and adopting the proposed 2009 restatement 
of the plan. 

29. City to provide consent to vacate way of necessity to allow a South Beach property 
access to their property. 

30. The need to amend Section 3 of Resolution 3431 dealing with annual SDC increases. 
 Bassingthwaite also informed the Council they may want to take a more in-depth look 

at SDC fees at a later date. 
31. The status of the research taking place with regards to the plastic bag ban.  Obteshka 

indicated he did not want to see this matter go by the wayside.  It was noted that 
Hawker and Firestone have been working on this subject, and do plan to make a 
recommendation to Council. 
 
MOTION was made by Patrick, seconded by Bertuleit, to enter executive session 

pursuant to ORS 192.660(2.)(b.)(h) and (i.), to discuss personnel issues and potential 
litigation with regards to real property. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote, 
and Council entered executive session at 2:20 P.M. 

MOTION was made by Patrick, seconded by Brusselback, to return to the work 
session. The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote, and Council returned to its 
work session at 3:16 P.M. 

Shaddox noted the Council had met in executive session today to discuss the correct 
procedures to follow for due process for a current employee on administrative leave.  

Bertuleit inquired on the status of the communication session that had been scheduled 
for the Council and then cancelled.  McConnell suggested this be one of the first issues 
addressed at the Council’s February 13th goal setting session. 

Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at 3:20 P.M. 
  
 
                                                                                                            

 
 

 
 

20



January 20, 2009 
6:00 P.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 The City Council of the City of Newport met on the above date in the Council 
Chambers of the Newport City Hall. 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

On roll call, Bain, Bertuleit, Brusselback, Kilbride, McConnell, Obteshka and 
Patrick were present.  
 Staff attending was as follows: City Manager Shaddox, City Attorney Firestone, 
Finance Director Riessbeck, Community Development Director Bassingthwaite, Public 
Works Director Ritzman, Lieutenant Teem, Parks & Recreation Director Protiva, Interim 
Airport Director Wilson, Library Director Smith, and Executive Assistant Atkinson. 
 

PROCLAMATIONS & RECOGNITIONS 
 

 Dean Sawyer, former Newport City Police Sergeant and one of the current 
Newport CERT organizers, gave a brief power point presentation. The following citizens 
received a Certificate of Appreciation for their participation and completing the 
Community Emergency Response Team Program (CERT):  Shaun Barclay, Lillie 
Chirrick, Kristin Cooper, David Daus, Edward Doench, Russ Engle, Keith Harcourt, 
Larry L. Johnson, Ruth Kassebaum, Corey, Mabey, Ivan Magnum, Mark Miranda, Gary 
Weeber, and Brook Young. Mayor Bain thanked all of the CERT members, past and 
present who have participated in this great program.   
 Former City Councilor Peggy Sabanskas was presented a plaque of appreciation 
for her 16 years of service to the citizens of Newport.  Councilor Larry Henson could not 
be present at the evening meeting, but he also will be receiving a plaque of appreciation 
for his service to the citizens of Newport while serving on Council. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

The consent calendar consisted of the following items: 
 
A. Approval of City Council minutes from the work session and regular 

meeting of January 5, 2009 
B. Report of Accounts Paid, December 2008. 
C. Fire & Police Reports, December 2008 
D. Proposed 2009-10 Budget Schedule 

 MOTION was made by Patrick, seconded by McConnell, to approve the consent 
calendar as amended during the noon meeting. The motion carried unanimously in a 
voice vote. 
 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS & COMMENTS 

21



 
 Councilor Bertuleit reported on the January 14th Airport Committee meeting. He 
indicated one item presented at the Airport Committee meeting would also be discussed 
at this evening’s meeting.  That item was the grant request for the beacon tower 
replacement   

Bertuleit also reported on the most recent Bicycle & Pedestrian Committee 
meeting he had attended. He commented on the State bicycle route, a trail near Ocean 
View, and sidewalk improvements in front of the Coast Guard Station.   
 Councilor Kilbride reported he had attended his first Council of Government’s 
(COG) meeting last week in Albany. He described the structure of the committee, and 
explained their main focus is senior services and programs. 
 Councilor Obteshka reported he attended a Nye Beach Parking District meeting.  
He stated that Bassingthwaite has been working on a parking matrix for all the proposed 
parking districts. He would recommend this matter be included in the Council’s 
upcoming 2009-10 budget.   
 Councilor Brusselback reported he will be attending his first Parks & Recreation 
Committee meeting tomorrow morning serving in his capacity as Council liaison. 
 Councilor McConnell reported on three meetings he had attended; the Oregon 
Coast Council for the Arts; the Lincoln Community Land Trust, and Destination Newport 
Committee. McConnell said he would like to invite a representative from the Land Trust 
to make a presentation before the Council on low income housing.   

McConnell reported the Destination Newport Committee approved a Portland 
Company, PDXposed, shooting a second 30 minute episode of Newport in February. It 
will air in the spring on KGW and its affiliates. Also discussed was the Special 
Events/Activity Grant Fund application form, which the Council will discuss later this 
evening. 
 Mayor Bain reported on attending a Housing Authority meeting last week. He 
commented that the Authority operates a child care facility in the Ocean Spray 
Community Center, and they will be looking for someone to take that activity over.  Bain 
said he had indicated during the noon work session that this group might want to get in 
contact with the individuals who had requested child care assistance at the Council’s last 
meeting.  He stated this is a community based program, and could be an opportunity for a 
good match.   

 
OFFICER’S REPORT’S 

 
 Report of the Mayor.  Bain noted that he would like to reappoint Chuck 
Forinash to serve another three year term on the Bike and Pedestrian Committee. There is 
also a vacancy on this same committee, as well as the Airport Committee.  He will 
request that press go out on these two vacancies. He also reported he hopes to make an 
appointment to the Planning Commission at the Council’s next meeting. 
 MOTION: Patrick moved, seconded by McConnell, to approve the reappointment 
of Chuck Forinash for another three year term to the Bike and Pedestrian Committee. On 
call for vote, all members present voted aye, motion carried. 
 

22



Bain reported that Kate Rowland had contacted him, and had indicated she would 
no longer be with the “News-Times” after the end of January. 
 Report of the City Manager.  Shaddox suggested the Council hold a mid-year 
budget review on January 30th at 1:00 P.M., and invite the entire Budget Committee to 
attend.  Finance Director Riessbeck will disperse the budget information soon. 
 Shaddox reported the annual Council goals setting session is scheduled for Friday, 
February 13th from 9:00 A.M. to 4:00 P.M.  He indicated he would be the facilitator for 
this session at Council’s request, rather than hiring an outside facilitator. Shaddox 
requested that Public Works Director Ritzman give a status report on the Bay Blvd 
project because of necessary changes in the timeline. Ritzman reported bids will still go 
out this spring, allowing for the contractor to secure prices on materials. Some work, such 
as potholing, will occur before Memorial Day, but the main excavation and construction 
would not begin until after Labor Day.  This will include a storm drain system, conduit 
for utilities, sewer and water lines, fiber optic conduit, curbs and gutters, sidewalks, and 
street overlay. Ritzman explained this particular project became a very complicated 
project with the addition of the undergrounding of utilities.   

Shaddox informed Council that we need an updated Council photo for both our 
website and photo gallery here at City Hall.  February 2nd will be scheduled for the photo 
shoot.      
 Report of the City Attorney. 
 Firestone reported that Council may need to hold a special meeting on the 
proposed Airport Service Agreement with SeaPort as early as next week.  He hopes to 
have the finalized written agreement completed soon, and sent to the Council prior to 
their special meeting.   
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
 Presentation by Budget Chair, David Allen, on Budget Process.  David Allen, 
Chair of the City’s Budget Committee, and Don Huster, also a member of the City’s 
Budget Committee came forward. Allen explained he had sent an e-mail to City Manager 
Shaddox requesting there be more budget committee involvement earlier in the process. 
Allen said it would be beneficial to meet earlier to be able to weigh in with 
recommendations before the formal process is set. He stated he had also met with 
Shaddox, and was informed there would be a mid-year budget status review and budget 
committee members would be invited. Allen requested another meeting be scheduled 
with the budget committee after the City Manager and Finance Director have received all 
budget requests from department heads, and prior to final numbers being crunched. Allen 
also indicated he would like to see a priority list created for Public Works capital projects 
 Don Huster stated he supports Allen’s budget suggestions. He commented this 
would allow the committee the opportunity to assist in steering the process, rather than 
dealing with it after it was fairly complete. He pointed out that infrastructure is a major 
priority for him. Huster requested an update on how the water and sewer fees that were 
approved during the last budget process were being collected and utilized. 
 Shaddox commented that he agrees with this approach for budget preparation.  He 
stated the City would like to work as a team with the budget committee to bring these 
ideas forward. He stated staff could assemble three to five year projections for our 

23



revenues, and he also could have Public Works prioritize their capital projects. He 
indicated a second meeting with the budget committee could occur in March after 
department proposals have been turned into his office and Finance.   

Bain said he appreciated the budget committee members requesting the 
opportunity to understand where the budget requests come from, and how they will be 
budgeted for the future.   
 Patrick thanked both Allen and Huster for their work on the City’s budget.   
 Obteshka suggested a timeline be created on the prioritized Public Works’ 
projects, and then posted on our website.    
 It was noted the added budget committee meetings would adhere to the public 
meeting statutes. Bain also indicated the Budget Committee would want to hold elections 
for the chair and secretary positions as they do each budget cycle. 

Allen commented he would like to see the ongoing revenue stream do a better job 
of helping to pay for upcoming public works projects.  He said he would like to discuss 
this idea in the upcoming work sessions.  

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
Joyce Gaffin, a South Beach resident, read a letter which will be entered into the 

record. The letter spoke to preserving a segment of the western view shed in the 
neighborhood between the South Jetty Road and the northeastern boundary of the South 
Beach State Park. The letter shared a list of requests for preserving this area, as well as 
programs that could assist to accomplish the preservation. 

Bain commented this request had been presented to Council at a prior meeting, 
and thanked Gaffin for her bringing it back before them. 

McConnell asked if State Parks had offered any assistance with her request. 
Gaffin responded there is a small possibility they may assist. McConnell also suggested 
Gaffin contact the Lincoln Land Legacy group to see if they can help with transaction 
fees.  Gaffin said she would contact them.   

Bertuleit recommend staff look into this and make sure none of the land has been 
vacated.  Searching for potential grants was also suggested.  

Parks & Recreation Director Protiva stated this property is contiguous with State 
Parks, and would be more beneficial for their purposes. Gaffin responded that State Parks 
is cutting back in funding. Patrick said she did not think State Parks would include this 
project in their budget. Gaffin said she wants the City to be instrumental in preserving 
this property.   
 Kilbride inquired which properties were owned by Investors 12.  Gaffin described 
those properties, as well as nearby property owners.   
 Bain asked staff to review this request and report back. 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
 Public Hearing on the proposed substantial Amendment No. 5 to the South 
Beach Urban Renewal Plan and Report and adopting ordinance.  Bain opened the 
hearing at 7:25 P.M. Bassingthwaite provided an overview of the process and the 
proposed amendment. He indicated the proposed amendment was developed through an 

24



extensive public involvement process that included public meetings held by an appointed 
ad hoc advisory committee, a public open house and public input.  The public open house 
was held December 4, 2008, to present and answer questions on the proposed 
amendment.  The Planning Commission reviewed the proposed amendment following a 
public hearing on December 8, 2008, and voted unanimously to recommend approval, 
and now the public hearing is before the Council this evening for their consideration. 
Bassingthwaite explained the proposed amendment would extend the sunset date of the 
current South Beach Urban Renewal Plan from 2010 to 2020, and would allow the 
establishment of a revised list of projects.  He explained the difference between the 
closeout date and sunset date for the plan.  Bassingthwaite reported on the presentation 
made January 14th before the Lincoln County Board of Commissioners. The City has 
received only one written letter of objection, which he distributed to Council prior to their 
evening meeting. Also there were no citizen objections at the Planning Commission 
hearing. 
 McConnell asked if projects listed in the plan are actually the proposed projects. 
Bassingthwaite said yes. Some are eligible for 100% urban renewal funding and some 
only a portion is eligible. Bassingthwaite explained that combining funds with urban 
renewal funds is very beneficial and partnering with private investors is also good. 
McConnell inquired if the projects listed were by priority. Bassingthwaite explained they 
are in phases, but can be changed if needed.   
 McConnell asked if green spaces and parks were included in the plan, and 
Bassingthwaite responded yes.   
 Patrick said there was plenty of input through the public process, and 
infrastructure was definitely a top priority.   
 Bassingthwaite also spoke to working with ODOT on development of an 
alternative mobility transportation standard for Hwy. 101 in South Beach, and the 
importance of local funding such as that in the proposed amendment. 
 Obteshka asked when we would hear from Lincoln County on their decision with 
regards to the 5th amendment.  Bassingthwaite explained the process that would need to 
be followed. Both Bain and McConnell said it was a very positive meeting with the 
county.         
 Patrick suggested the Urban Renewal Agency also adopt the 5th Amendment to 
the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan prior to the Council’s adoption. She further 
requested this action occur prior to the Council’s action to adopt at their next meeting.  
 Bain called for proponents.  Janet Webster, a resident of Newport, and an 
employee at the Hatfield Marine Science Center spoke. Webster said she had been 
involved with the ad hoc advisory committee process on the 5th Amendment to the South 
Beach Urban Renewal Plan.  She said it was a good process with lots of public 
involvement.  Webster said she supports the plan, and commented that it is very flexible.  
She suggested Council consider more specific goals with regards to South Beach in their 
upcoming goal setting session.  
 Don Huster, proponent, reported he had served on the ad hoc committee, and the 
process had been very well organized and thought out. He stated that Bassingthwaite did 
a very good job of structuring the framework for the phases.  

25



 Bain called for opponents.  Bassingthwaite noted there was only one opponent, 
and that opposition was received by letter from Gregory A. Carpenter, 5806 N.W. 
Rhododendron Street, Newport.   
 McConnell thanked Bassingthwaite for all his work on this project. 
 Bain closed the public hearing at 7:53 P.M. 
 MOTION: Bertuleit moved, seconded by McConnell, to approve the proposed 
amendment and direct staff to bring the ordinance back to the next City Council meeting.  
The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote.   
 
 Request for extended bus service for the Seafood & Wine Festival from the 
Chamber of Commerce and to utilize transient room taxes.  Lorna Davis, Director, 
Newport Chamber of Commerce, spoke on their extended bus service request.  She stated 
they would like to extend the shuttle bus service hours on Saturday, February 21, 2009, 
during the Seafood & Wine Festival to 10:00 p.m., and to utilize transient room tax funds 
to accomplish this. This request was based on a previous Council recommendation. The 
extension of hours on that particular date could help to mitigate potential driving under 
the influence issues and provide a benefit to our visitors during the festival. It was noted 
the fiscal impact would not exceed $1,000 from transient room tax monies.   
 Obteshka said he was really interested in getting as many people as possible to 
know about these added hours.  Bain said there would be reporting on this. 
 MOTION: McConnell moved, seconded by Obteshka to approve the request from 
the Greater Newport Chamber of Commerce to fund an extension of the shuttle service 
on Saturday, February 21, 2009 during the Seafood and Wine Festival, at a cost not to 
exceed $1,000, and that the funding come from transient room tax monies.  The motion 
carried unanimously in a voice vote.   
 
 Special Event Application received for the Newport Marathon. Tom 
Swinford, Newport Marathon event organizer, was present to answer questions about the 
marathon, and their application. Swinford shared the history of the event, and a couple of 
stories from past marathons. 

Swinford indicated the marathon organizers are requesting a fee waiver for the 
services provided by the City.  Those services include traffic control during the event and 
barriers. This will be the event’s 11th year.  It would be held on May 30, 2009, between 
the hours of 7:00 A.M. and 3:00 P.M.  It is a well received event in the community, and 
brings approximately 2000 visitors to our area each year.  The estimated fiscal cost to the 
city should be no more than $1,000.   
 MOTION: Bertuleit moved, seconded by Patrick to approve the fee waiver 
requested by the Newport Marathon to be held on May 30, 2009.  The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote.   
 

Adoption of new Municipal Code Chapter 6.60, regulating release of towed 
and impounded vehicles. City Attorney Firestone explained this issue was requested by 
our Police Department.  He explained the Council would need to decide whether or not to 
adopt an ordinance adding a new code chapter to require payment, proof of ownership 
and insurance before releasing a vehicle that has been impounded for abandoning or for 
parking violations. Firestone explained the city currently requires payment of costs and 

26



compliance with certain requirements before a vehicle being impounded during a traffic 
stop can be released, but does not have the same requirements for vehicles impounded for 
abandonment or for parking violations.  He stated if the ordinance is adopted by Council, 
the fiscal impact would be positive, as it would allow the city to recover costs not 
currently being recovered. 
 MOTION: Motion was made by McConnell, seconded by Brusselback, to read 
Ordinance No 1970 by title only and for adoption by roll call vote. Shaddox read 
Ordinance No. 1970 by title only and placed for final passage. Voting aye on the 
adoption of Ordinance No. 1970 were: Bain, Bertuleit, Brusselback, Kilbride, 
McConnell, Obteshka, and Patrick.      
 

Proposed ordinance to change the allocation of room tax proceeds that must 
be expended on tourism promotion or tourism facilities.   Firestone reported the issue 
before the Council is whether or not to amend the current code provision allocating the 
percentage of room tax proceeds to be used for tourism promotion and facilities by 
increasing the percentage from 40% to 46%.  Firestone explained this would make the 
city compliant with state law, and recommended the ordinance be adopted. 
 MOTION:  Brusselback moved, seconded by McConnell to read Ordinance No. 
1971 by title only and for adoption by roll call vote.  Shaddox read Ordinance No. 1971 
by title only and placed for final passage.  Voting aye on the adoption of Ordinance No. 
1971 were Bain, Bertuleit, Brusselback, Kilbride, McConnell, Obteshka and Patrick. 
 

Consideration of adoption of amendment to employee retirement plan.  
Firestone explained the matter before the Council is whether or not to adopt the proposed 
2009 restatement of the City of Newport Employee’s Retirement Plan.  He explained in 
detail the changes being recommended.  He explained the difference between the Trustee 
and the Board. He indicated if the Council wished to consider additional changes to the 
plan, he would recommend going forward with adoption of the 2009 restatement, and a 
process be established to consider the additional changes. Any decisions made by the 
administrator, which would be the Finance Director could be appealed to the 5 member 
Trustee. Firestone also stated if the Council does not wish to make all the recommended 
changes, they at least make the changes required by Federal law.   
 Obteshka asked can a domestic partner be a beneficiary. Firestone said there are 
three basic options on how the benefit can be dispersed, and anyone can be designated to 
receive those benefits by the beneficiary.   

MOTION: McConnell moved, seconded by Bertuleit for adoption of the 2009 
restatement of the City of Newport Employees’ Retirement Plan as presented.  Motion 
carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 
 Consent to Vacation of Way of Necessity.  Firestone reported the Council needs 
to consider whether to consent to the vacation of a way of necessity that currently affects 
property owned by Landwaves in South Beach.  Firestone recommended the Council 
consent to the vacation as requested, and authorize the City Manager to sign a written 
consent. He indicated no one has objected and no one will lose access. 

27



 MOTION: Bertuleit moved, seconded by Obteshka to consent to the vacation of 
the way of necessity as requested and authorize the City Manager to execute a written 
consent.  On call for vote, all members present voted aye, motion carried. 
 
 Annual adjustment of System Development Charges and proposed 
amendment to Section 3 of Resolution No. 3431.  Bassingthwaite explained the 
proposed amendment to Section 3 of Resolution No. 3431 would change the automatic 
adjustment to require Council approval by resolution for the adjustments in system 
development charges. The proposed revision would also change the date of the 
construction cost index for SDC adjustment purposes from January 1 to November 1.  
This would allow staff to calculate the rate earlier so that there is more time between the 
calculation and the effective date of January 1st.  He also noted there was a typo in the 
table on the staff memo, the figures $0.025/sq.ft., and $0.027/sq/ft. should actually appear 
as $0.25 and $0.27.     
 MOTION: Patrick moved, seconded by McConnell to adopt Resolution No. 3454, 
amending Section 3 of Resolution No. 3431.  On call for vote, all members present voted 
aye, motion carried. 
 

DISCUSSION 
 

Report on potential funding for child care through OSU Extension Service.   
Kilbride asked to have this matter tabled until it can be determined if the 

Association of Family and Community Education child services can be incorporated into 
the Housing Authority child care services, as mentioned earlier in the meeting by Mayor 
Bain.  He said it might be better to wait and consider it during the next fiscal budget.   

McConnell and Bertuleit both expressed that the need is now. Brusselback said he 
had a problem with this request being funded out of the general fund contingency. He 
commented that Finance Director Riessbeck had indicated this was where this request 
would need to be funded. He agreed with Kilbride’s recommendation to table the matter, 
and look at it during the upcoming budget session. 

Following a brief discussion, McConnell said it appeared the general consensus of 
the group was to table this matter until further information can be attained.  

MOTION:  Kilbride moved, seconded by Patrick, to table the request from the 
Association of Family and Community Education through the OSU Extension Services, 
until further information has been gathered.  On call for vote, all members present vote 
aye, motion carried.   

   
Further discussion with regards to the Special Event/Activity Grant Fund 

Application process ($75,000). 
 
Linda Neigebauer, business owner in Nye Beach, and Catherine Rickbone, 

Director of Oregon Coast Council for the Arts spoke with regards to the Special 
Event/Activity Grant Fund Application process. Their main request was to change that 
portion of the application that excluded events already established. Neigebauer referred to 
the very popular Nye Beach Mystery Weekend coming up in March, and Rickbone spoke 
to the Fall Jazz Festival. They explained there are already established events in their 

28



infancy that bring many people to our community, and would bring more with expanded 
marketing.  Rickbone also commented that if you get local support for an event this 
assists as leverage for attaining grants.  

Bertuleit said the original idea when providing these funds was to establish more 
events during the shoulder seasons.  Bain commented we need to make sure we are using 
the transient room dollars wisely. Kilbride asked about the funds that currently go to 
advertising and marketing.  

It was determined the application form needs some reworking by staff. It was 
noted there will be at least two more requests coming before the Council at their next 
meeting on this same form.   

A discussion ensued on the grant funding and whether it will be carried over to 
the next budget year. Shaddox said that will be up to the Council on whether they want to 
fund this again next year.   

Patrick said we need to look at what the current advertising agency is providing, 
and what these other grant requests will be asking for and make sure they are not crossing 
paths.  

It was the general consensus of the Council to continue this matter to a later date.    
 
Shaddox introduced new Library Director, Ted Smith to the Council. 
 
Submit FAA grant funding request for Airport Beacon Tower replacement.   
John Wilson, Airport Interim Director, distributed copies of photos of the beacon 

tower, which depicted its deterioration. He recommended Council approve a funding 
request to FAA for a replacement beacon tower at the Airport. He explained the tower is 
a necessary component of the Airport operations, and has become a safety hazard because 
of corrosion, age-related stress and climatic issues. Wilson also is recommending there be 
some reprogramming of funds included in the current budget that is intended for new 
additional aircraft hangars, and put it towards supporting this beacon tower project.    

Wilson explained the FAA will not support the hangars, as we have five open 
hangars now, and no waiting list. Patrick said what happens if in the summer we get more 
requests for hangars, can we then go out for the FAA monies.  Wilson said yes we could, 
and that would be the better time to make the request.   

Kilbride asked if this request had been approved by the Airport Committee, and 
Wilson responded it had.  He also spoke to the Committee approving a water suppression 
project, and having design work done for this project.  

MOTION:  Kilbride moved, seconded by McConnell to authorize city staff to 
submit a funding request to the FAA to replace the Airport rotating beacon tower.   

Under discussion, Obteshka asked how long the original tower lasted.  Wilson 
said he thinks this is the original tower, so we got our money’s worth. The motion carried 
unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

Summary Report – Nye Beach Holiday Celebration.  As required by the 
current Special Event/Activity Grant Fund Application process, a final report 
summarizing the results of the event/activity with a detailed and verified accounting is 
required. Thus, the participants in the Nye Beach Holiday Celebration provided the 
required report.  

29



ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Having no further business, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:24 p.m. 
 
________________________________  _____________________________ 
Cheryl Atkinson, Executive Assistant  William D. “Bill” Bain 
 

30



January 23, 2009 
2:00 P.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 

 
 The City Council of the City of Newport held a special meeting on the above date 
in the Council Chambers of the Newport City Hall. 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

On roll call, Bain, Bertuleit, Brusselback, Kilbride, McConnell, Obteshka and 
Patrick were present.  
 Staff attending was as follows: City Manager Shaddox, City Attorney Firestone, 
and Executive Assistant Atkinson. 
 
 Further Consideration of Air Service Agreement:  Firestone explained that 
Mike Schulz apologized for not being able to attend today’s meeting, but he has 
continued to participate in the discussions and had input on this most recent agreement. 

Firestone shared the basic terms of the revised agreement that had been recently 
negotiated:   

• SeaPort will operate three round trips per day between Astoria and Portland, and 
two round trips per day between Newport and Portland.  One of the planes will 
overnight in Newport   

• SeaPort will receive all revenues from the flights.  The Consortium will reimburse 
SeaPort to the extent that the revenues do not cover SeaPorts costs of $918.88 
between Newport and Portland and $781.74 between Astoria and Portland. 

• The payments from the Consortium to SeaPort are subject to the following 
maximum monthly amounts: 

 First 6 months  $200,000 
 Second 6 months $195,000 
 Third 6 months $170,000 
 Fourth 6 months $155,000 

If the payment in any month is less than the maximum, the difference is carried 
over. 

• SeaPort establishes the fares 
• Start-up date would be March 15, 2009 
• The Consortium agreed to pay specified start-up costs 
• The Consortium can terminate after six months if passenger counts are low, but 

must provide SeaPort 90 days to try to cure 
• The agreement may be terminated for lack of an interline ticketing agreement 

after 90 days, or for the lack of an interline baggage agreement after 180 days.  
SeaPort will have 30 days to cure the lack of an interline agreement of either type. 

 
Firestone explained the major differences from the prior agreement.  These included: 

SeaPort now establishing the fares, the March 15th startup date, the Consortium agreeing 

31



to pay some start up costs; cancelling agreement if passenger count is low after 6 months; 
interline ticketing agreement must be in place after 90 days of signing the agreement; and 
interline baggage agreement must be in place after 180 days. 

Firestone shared the key issues in the agreement: (1) the maximum payment amount 
intending to make the contract last a full two years; (2) passenger revenues not covering 
SeaPort’s cost of operations; (3) the requirement for interline ticketing and baggage 
agreements to be in place in a specified time, and (4) the changes in the termination 
provisions. 
 Firestone said Council will need to consider the revised agreement and decide if it 
is worth going forward. 

Bain indicated we made a requirement the contractor provide a set of financials in 
the RFP process, and we have yet to see them.  He said he is not comfortable moving 
forward without that information.  Firestone commented he has requested the financial 
information more than once from SeaPort. 
 A lengthy discussion ensued with regards to SeaPort’s financial report; the need 
for auditing the marketing dollars, the importance of having interline ticketing and 
baggage agreements in place.  Also discussed at length was the continuation of air service 
once the subsidy is spent. 
 Flight fares and whether or not fees would be charged for extra baggage was 
discussed. 
  Kilbride reported he had sent an e-mail earlier to Council members analyzing the 
finances of this endeavor.  He stated he did not see how this agreement could work 
especially once the subsidy is spent, and would have problems supporting it. 
 Both Brusselback and McConnell indicated it was not their understanding that air 
service was a guarantee once the subsidy was spent.  
 Bertuleit inquired if the agreement with SeaPort could be transferred once 
approved.  Firestone responded if SeaPort, the Consortium and the other airline involved 
all agreed on the transfer and signed on the dotted line, yes it could occur.  
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Doug Wills, Newport resident and “frequent flyer” came forward.  Councilor 
Obteshka reported he had shared Mr. Wills’ e-mail with other councilors. Wills explained 
he flies many miles for his business and would speak to the agreement from a consumer’s 
perspective. He indicated having no interline ticketing or baggage agreement in place 
would stop him from using the new service. Also no guarantee of compensation should 
SeaPort’s service delay and create a passenger from meeting their flight at PDX was a big 
concern.  His last objection was the proposed fare. He said he agreed with Councilor 
Kilbride, and he would not use this airline the way it is currently set up.   

Bain agreed with the importance of having interline ticketing and baggage 
agreements in place.   

Patrick asked how Wills currently arrives at PDX.  Wills said by vehicle and then 
spends the night at a hotel near the airport.  Obteshka asked if the interline agreements 
were in place what would Wills be willing to pay for a ticket.  The $75 range, Wills 
answered. 

Council thanked Mr. Wills for his input in this issue.   

32



Steve Salisbury, Newport resident, stated he also is a frequent flyer, and agreed 
with Wills comments.  He said this contract has more holes in it than Swiss cheese, and 
he would recommend no tax payer’s money go towards this project. He suggested 
waiting until a project comes forward that will work.  He has done the math and this one 
does not work.   

Bain noted the funds for the subsidy were lottery backed funds, and the source 
was not general fund property tax funds. 

Patrick inquired if Council determines not to go forward, what their exposure 
would be and what are their options. 

Firestone said their options are to either grant the current agreement; say no to the 
current agreement; or if Council thinks there is a possibility to still negotiate an 
agreement, but would like it to be better than this one, they have to be specific about what 
is acceptable.   

Firestone said if Council decides not to go forward, we would need to notify 
Astoria and SeaPort.  It is clear that neither the federal or state grant will be awarded 
unless both Newport and Astoria are on board.  Firestone said there is always the risk that 
SeaPort could sue. 

Dan Clem, Director of Oregon State Department of Aviation, distributed a draft 
Sustainability Plan for Coastal Air Service from March 15, 2009 through March 14, 
2011. Clem said he has been involved heavily over the last month in this process, and 
informed the Council that time is growing short for a decision with regards to these 
federal and state funds.  He said a decision must be made by the end of next month.  
Clem reviewed the grant, where the agreement stands to date, and interline agreements.  
He explained that interline agreements are very difficult for small airlines to attain, and 
without a contract in place almost impossible. This has come about because of our 
economic times.  Clem spoke about the need to build a passenger base for Newport and 
how that cannot occur without air service being established.  He also commented that 
SeaPort will be sharing in the risk, right along with Newport and Astoria, and Newport 
will need to accept some risk in taking this contract.  He said there is no way SeaPort will 
have interline agreements in place by March 15th, as it is a 3 to 6 month proposition for 
them to attain.  He reviewed the numbers on his sustainability plan.  He said once 
Council approves the original agreement with SeaPort, they still will have the opportunity 
to negotiate more conditions, i.e., interline agreements and marketing.  If SeaPort fails 
here they are not going to find other agencies wanting to deal with them.  Clem said in all 
likelihood, the financials being requested will not be provided until a contract is signed.  
He again reminded Council the clock is ticking, and at some point the State is going to 
begin looking at who is next on the list and available to receive these funds.  
 Language being added to the contract regarding interline agreements, marketing, 
and financials being provided once the contract is signed was suggested. Firestone said he 
can add that language. 

 Kilbride said the only thing that might change his mind on going forward with 
this agreement would be the fact that if we do not take the money, the state is going to 
award it to someone else.  He said we get two years of air service, and maybe that is 
better than nothing.  McConnell said this will also establish passenger history for our 
airport.   
 

33



Brusselback asked if Astoria had approved this current agreement, and Firestone 
responded yes. Firestone said he did not think Astoria would object to stiffening up a 
couple of provisions if it was to the Consortium’s benefit.   

Bain stated we could direct our negotiators to characterize what we have been 
discussing with regards to the interline agreements, marketing and financials.  We could 
accept the agreement as presented with the added language directions to Firestone.   
  
MOTION:  Kilbride moved to approve the airline service agreement with SeaPort in 
principal if the following provisions were made: 

• Review financials, including leased equipment, before startup date, with right to   
terminate if not provided, or the financials show that SeaPort will not be able to 
comply with its commitments 

• Consortium to participate in negotiations in the interline ticketing and baggage 
agreement process; and 

• A provision added relating to marketing to specify cumulative amount spent on 
marketing and be subject to audit.   

 
Patrick asked for City Manager Shaddox’s opinion on the proposed airline service 

agreement. 
Shaddox indicated if the Council reviews their basic goal from when this all 

began, which was to attain sustainable air service for Newport, all evidence points to that 
not occurring.  He said he would recommend not continuing forward with the agreement. 
Council does not have original expectation of attaining the sustainable air service after 
the two year subsidy ends.  He also commented that SeaPort has not proven they are 
honorable by providing the information requested in the RFP prior to the agreement, and 
in all likelihood they will not come through after the agreement has been approved.  He 
stated it is not right to spend public money if you are not reaching your goal. 

Following each councilor’s response with regards to Shaddox’s opinion on this 
potential agreement, and whether they should move forward, McConnell seconded the 
motion 
 On call for vote, all members present voted aye, with one abstention by Patrick.  
Motion carried in a voice vote.  
 Patrick brought up a request from the Port of Newport regarding a letter of 
support for the NOAA project.  It was the general consensus of Council members to have 
a letter prepared in support of the Port of Newport/NOAA Project.  
  

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to come before the Council the meeting adjourned 
at approximately 4:43 p.m. 
  
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Cheryl Atkinson, Executive Assistant  William D. Bain, Mayor 

34



The mission of the Newport Police Department is to consistently invest available resources toward our 
City’s reputation as a safe place to live, work, play, learn and visit. 

Newport Police Department Newport Police Department 

                                Memorandum                                 Memorandum 
  

      One Team - One Future       One Team - One Future 

 

Date:  January 16, 2009 
 
To:  Mayor and City Council 
 
Thru:  Dale Shaddox, City Manager 
 
From:  Mark J. Miranda, Chief of Police 
 
Subject: LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION 
 
ISSUE:  Shall the City Council recommend approval of the liquor license application for SKW 
Brewing 
 
BACKGROUND:  SKW Brewing, 56 SW Cottage Street., has made application to the Oregon Liquor 
Control Commission for a “Brewery Public House” license due to a change from a “Brewing” license.  
Such a license allows for the applicant to manufacture, export, store, and transport, malt beverages.  
The licensee may also sell malt beverages manufactured on or off the licensed premises at retail for 
consumption on or off the premises.  The licensee may sell malt beverages in brewery-sealed 
packages at retail directly to the consumer for consumption on or off the premises.  Plus, the 
licensee may sell wine and cider at retail for consumption on or off the premises. 
 
A background check of the applicant revealed no disqualifying information.  SWK Brewing is 
located on the ground floor of a residence on the west side of SW Cottage Street, north of SW 2nd 
Street.  There have been no police calls to the location since March 2007.  The current license held 
by SWK Brewing was approved by the City Council in July 2008. 
 
ORS 471.166 requires an applicant to obtain a recommendation from the local governing body in 
the city where the business is located.  The City Council may make a “Favorable Recommendation” 
or an “Unfavorable Recommendation” to OLCC.  The Commission will then decide if granting a 
license is appropriate. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  There is no fiscal impact on the City other than time to process the application. 
 

 
 
NNoble 
PProfessional 
DDedicated 

35



OLCC License Application 
January 16, 2009 
Page 2 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Police Department recommends favorable action by the City Council. 
 
 
 
 

36



The mission of the Newport Police Department is to consistently invest available resources toward our 
City’s reputation as a safe place to live, work, play, learn and visit. 

Newport Police Department Newport Police Department 

                                Memorandum                                 Memorandum 
  

      One Team - One Future       One Team - One Future 

 

Date:  January 27, 2009 
 
To:  Mayor and City Council 
 
Thru:  Dale Shaddox, City Manager 
 
From:  Mark J. Miranda, Chief of Police 
 
Subject: LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION 
 
ISSUE:  Shall the City Council recommend approval of the liquor license application for SKW 
Brewing. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The SKW Brewing, 1658 N. Coast Highway., has made application to the Oregon 
Liquor Control Commission for a “Limited On-Premises Sales” and “Off-Premises Sales” license as a 
new outlet.  Such a license allows for the applicant to sell wine, malt beverages and cider ‘by the 
drink.’  These beverages must be consumed on the premises.   Partially consumed bottles of wine 
that had been served with a meal may also be taken from the premises.  Also, such a license allows 
for the applicant to sell factory sealed containers of wine, malt beverages and cider.  Containers of 
malt beverages sold under the license may not hold more than two and one-quarter gallons 
 
A background check of the applicant revealed no disqualifying information.  SKW Brewing will be 
located in the Sea Towne Plaza in a unit previously occupied by a bookstore.  SKW Brewing 
currently holds an OLCC license for a Brewery on SW Cottage Street. 

 
ORS 471.166 requires an applicant to obtain a recommendation from the local governing body in 
the city where the business is located.  The City Council may make a “Favorable Recommendation” 
or an “Unfavorable Recommendation” to OLCC.  The Commission will then decide if granting a 
license is appropriate. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  There is no fiscal impact on the City other than time to process the application. 
 

 
 
NNoble 
PProfessional 
DDedicated 

37



OLCC License Application 
January 27, 2009 
Page 2 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Police Department does not recommend favorable action by the City 
Council.  SKW Brewing has failed to obtain a City Business license for the Sea Towne location.  The 
owner was contacted on January 15, 2009, to which he replied the next day that he would obtain a 
license.  As of the date of this memorandum, there has been no application for a business licenses 
submitted by SKW Brewing. 
 
 

38



The mission of the Newport Police Department is to consistently invest available resources toward our 
City’s reputation as a safe place to live, work, play, learn and visit. 

Newport Police Department Newport Police Department 

                                Memorandum                                 Memorandum 
  

      One Team - One Future       One Team - One Future 

 

Date:  January 16, 2009 
 
To:  Mayor and City Council 
 
Thru:  Dale Shaddox, City Manager 
 
From:  Mark J. Miranda, Chief of Police 
 
Subject: LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION 
 
ISSUE:  Shall the City Council recommend approval of the liquor license application for Western 
Beverage. 
 
BACKGROUND:  Western Beverage, 130 SE 32nd Street, South Beach., has made application to the 
Oregon Liquor Control Commission for a “Wholesale Malt Beverage and Wine” license due to a 
change in ownership.  Such a license allows for the applicant to import, export, store, and transport, 
wine and malt beverages to other licensees.  No alcohol liquor may be sold for consumption on the 
licensed premises.  However, a licensee may sell naturally fermented wine or cider in quantities of 
not less than four gallons nor more than 55 gallons at any one time to consumers for consumption 
not on the licensed premises.  Malt beverages containing not more than eight percent alcohol by 
volume in quantities not less than five gallons may be sold to any unlicensed organization, lodge, 
picnic party or private gathering.   
 
A background check of the applicant revealed no disqualifying information.  Western Beverage is 
located on the south side of SE 32nd Street, just west of SE Ferry Slip Road.  There as been one police 
call to the location since October 2007 and that dealt with a welfare check. 
 
ORS 471.166 requires an applicant to obtain a recommendation from the local governing body in 
the city where the business is located.  The City Council may make a “Favorable Recommendation” 
or an “Unfavorable Recommendation” to OLCC.  The Commission will then decide if granting a 
license is appropriate. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  There is no fiscal impact on the City other than time to process the application. 

 
 
NNoble 
PProfessional 
DDedicated 

39



OLCC License Application 
January 16, 2009 
Page 2 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Police Department recommends favorable action by the City Council. 
 
 
 
 

40



The mission of the Newport Police Department is to consistently invest available resources toward our 
City’s reputation as a safe place to live, work, play, learn and visit. 

Newport Police Department Newport Police Department 

                                Memorandum                                 Memorandum 
  

      One Team - One Future       One Team - One Future 

 

Date:  January 27, 2009 
 
To:  Mayor and City Council 
 
Thru:  Dale Shaddox, City Manager 
 
From:  Mark J. Miranda, Chief of Police 
 
Subject: LIQUOR LICENSE APPLICATION 
 
ISSUE:  Shall the City Council recommend approval of the liquor license application for the Bay 839 
Restaurant. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The Bay 839 Restaurant, 839 SW Bay Blvd, has made application to the Oregon 
Liquor Control Commission for a “Full On-Premises” license as a new outlet.  Such a license allows 
for the applicant to sell wine, malt beverages, cider ‘by the drink’ and distilled liquor.  These 
beverages must be consumed on the premises.  The applicant may sell malt beverages in factory-
sealed containers (kegs) for consumption off premises and wine in factory sealed containers under 
certain conditions.   Partially consumed bottles of wine that had been served with a meal may also 
be taken from the premises. 
 
A background check of the applicants revealed no disqualifying information.  The Bay 839 
Restaurant is located on the bay side of SW Bay Blvd. at the site previously occupied by Shirley’s 
Restaurant.  There have been five police calls for service at the address over the past year.  Only one 
involved a dispute with a customer. 
 
ORS 471.166 requires an applicant to obtain a recommendation from the local governing body in 
the city where the business is located.  The City Council may make a “Favorable Recommendation” 
or an “Unfavorable Recommendation” to OLCC.  The Commission will then decide if granting a 
license is appropriate. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  There is no fiscal impact on the City other than time to process the application. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  The Police Department recommends favorable action by the City Council,  

 
 
NNoble 
PProfessional 
DDedicated 

41



OLCC License Application 
January 27, 2009 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



Urban Renewal 
Agenda Items to 

Follow: 

60



January 20, 2009 
9:25 P.M. 

Newport, Oregon 
 
 

The Urban Renewal Agency of the City of Newport met on the above date in the 
Council Chambers of the Newport City Hall.  On roll call, Bain, Bertuleit, Brusselback, 
Kilbride, McConnell, Obteshka and Patrick were present.  
 Staff attending was as follows: City Manager Shaddox, City Attorney Firestone, 
Finance Director Riessbeck, Community Development Director Bassingthwaite, Public 
Works Director Ritzman, Lieutenant Team, Parks & Recreation Director Protiva, Interim 
Airport Director Wilson, Library Director Smith, and Executive Assistant Atkinson. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
 The consent calendar consisted of the following items: 
 
 A. Approval of minutes from the meeting of December 1, 2008; 
 B. Report of accounts paid for November and December 2008. 
 
 MOTION was made by Bain, seconded by Brusselback, to approve the consent 
calendar.  The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
 
 Designation of City Manager as Urban Renewal Executive Director.  
Firestone explained the Urban Renewal Agency had designated the previous City 
Manager by name as its Executive Director.  As a result, with the change in the City 
Manager position, there is a vacancy as Executive Director of the Urban Renewal 
Agency.  Firestone recommended the Urban Renewal Agency make the position of City 
Manager the URA Executive Director, but without the need of a separate appointment 
each time there is a change of City Manager.    
 MOTION:  Bain moved, seconded by McConnell to designate the City Manager 
position as the Urban Renewal Agency Executive Director on a permanent basis to avoid 
the need for a reappointment every time there is a change in City Manager. The motion 
carried unanimously in a voice vote.   
 
 Appointment of Robert Smith to serve on Urban Renewal Budget 
Committee:  It was explained that currently the only member not serving on both the 
City’s Budget Committee and the Urban Renewal Budget Committee is Robert Smith.  
Staff has recommended Mr. Smith be appointed to serve on both the Urban Renewal 
Budget Committee and the City’s Budget Committee to make the process more efficient 
and standardize the two committees.  
 MOTION:  Bain moved, seconded by Kilbride to appoint Robert Smith to serve 
on the Urban Renewal Budget Committee with his term to run through December 31, 
2010.  The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

61



 Bertuleit had questions with regards to Urban Renewal funds and projects. He 
said he would like to know more what is being done with these funds. Firestone reported 
that the North Side Urban Renewal District is now closed and we are only paying off debt 
in this district. We have not been doing many projects in the South Beach Urban Renewal 
District, as we have been waiting on the approval of the 5th amendment to the South 
Beach Plan before we move forward with projects in that district.   
 Bassingthwaite suggested that when the Council meets in February to plan and 
discuss their goals, that Urban Renewal goals be included in their plan. 

Ritzman reported staff is currently working on two projects in South Beach, new 
sidewalks and a water line. Patrick asked if our engineering staff could not do more in-
house, rather than hiring outside engineering services. Ritzman responded they do not 
have enough staff to handle the current work load, and City Manager Shaddox agreed. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 
approximately 9:34 p.m.        
 
_______________________________  ______________________________ 
Cheryl Atkinson, Executive Assistant  Patricia Patrick, Chair 
  
 
  
 
 

62



63



64



65



Returning to Regular 
Council Meeting 
Agenda Items: 

66



67



 
 
Page 1. Ordinance No.     ____        (Substantial Amendment 5 to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan and Report) 

ORDINANCE FOR ADOPTION AT 2-2-09 COUNCIL MEETING: 
 

CITY OF NEWPORT 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  _          _  
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENT 5 TO THE SOUTH 
BEACH URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AND REPORT 

 
Summary of Findings: 
 
1. The City of Newport adopted a South Beach Urban Renewal Plan and Report ("Plan"), dated 
September 12, 1983, by Ordinance No. 1341, and Lincoln County did subsequently approve the Plan 
by Resolution 83-26-9.  Four amendments to the Plan have been previously adopted.  Unless 
amended, the Plan will sunset in 2010 as the 3rd Amendment established December 31, 2010, as the 
date after which no bonded indebtedness shall be issued. 
 
2.  The Newport Urban Renewal Agency hired a consultant following a selection process that included 
members of the public on the selection interview team.  Following a recommendation from the selection 
interview team, the Newport Urban Renewal Agency agreed to hire The Benkendorf Associates 
Corporation as the lead consultant on the project at a public meeting that allowed for the opportunity for 
public input on the matter. 
 
3.  The Newport Urban Renewal Agency appointed a South Beach Urban Renewal Plan Update Ad 
Hoc Advisory Committee consisting of a variety of interested parties and members of the public to 
review the existing plan and to make recommendations on possible amendment of the plan, including 
extending the sunset date and revising the project list.  The South Beach Urban Renewal Plan Update 
Ad Hoc Advisory Committee held public meetings on April 7, 2008, May 19, 2008, June 2, 2008, 
August 25, 2008, and September 29, 2008, and allowed for public input at the meetings.  The South 
Beach Urban Renewal Plan Update Ad Hoc Advisory Committee at the September 29, 2008, meeting 
recommended approval of a draft Substantial Amendment 5 to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan 
("Fifth Amendment") and accompanying draft Report on Substantial Amendment 5. 
 
4.  Public open houses on the amendment process were held on June 24, 2008, and December 4, 
2008, at the Hatfield Marine Science Center that included presentations by the consultant and City staff 
and allowed for questions and comments from the public.  
 
5.  The Newport Planning Commission held a public hearing on December 8, 2008, and considered the 
proposed Fifth Amendment and voted unanimously to recommend approval to the Newport City 
Council. 
 
6.  The governing bodies of the taxing entities within the South Beach Urban Renewal District were 
provided copies of the proposed Fifth Amendment and were offered the opportunity to have a 

68



 
 
Page 2. Ordinance No.     ____        (Substantial Amendment 5 to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan and Report) 

presentation by City staff and to provide written comment on the proposed Fifth Amendment prior to 
the adoption of this ordinance. 
 
7.  The South Beach Urban Renewal Area includes a portion that lies outside of the Newport city limits 
and within the jurisdiction of Lincoln County.  Approval by the Lincoln County Board of Commissioners 
for the portion of the Area outside of the city limits will be needed. Administration of the South Beach 
Urban Renewal Plan as renewed through the Fifth Amendment will be under the authority of the City of 
Newport pursuant to ORS 457.105 once the amendment is approved by Lincoln County. 
 
8.  The Newport City Council held a public hearing on January 20, 2009, that was duly noticed in 
accordance with ORS 457.120.   
 
9.  The Newport City Council finds that the Fifth Amendment provides additional detailed findings in 
regard to the need for the Fifth Amendment and provides the necessary documentation as required by 
applicable state statutes including ORS 457.085 and that support findings in accordance with ORS 
457.095: 
 

A.  The urban renewal area is still "blighted" as described by the plan. 
B.   That rehabilitation and redevelopment is necessary to protect the public health safety and 
welfare of the City of Newport. 
C.  The urban renewal plan conforms to the comprehensive plan and economic development 
plans of the city as a whole and provides an outline for accomplishing the urban renewal 
projects that are proposed in the plan. 
D.  No displacement of persons are anticipated such that provision for the housing of displaced 
persons under ORS 457.095 (4) is required.    
D.  Acquisition of real property identified within the plan is necessary such as that, for example, 
identified within the plan projects for public right-of-ways, utility easements, trail easements, 
park and open space acquisition, and strategic property acquisition. 
E.   Adoption and carrying out the urban renewal plan is economically sound and feasible. 
F.  The City of Newport will assume and complete any activities prescribed it by the urban 
renewal plan as funding allows. 
 

10.  The Newport City Council made a determination after considering the recommendation of the 
Planning Commission, allowing for input by members of the public and allowing for written comments 
from the affected taxing to be presented at the public hearing, by a unanimous vote to adopt the Fifth 
Amendment.  
 
11.  Pursuant to ORS 457.125, a copy of this adopted ordinance adopting the Fifth Amendment under 
ORS 457.095 will need to be sent to the Newport Urban Renewal Agency.  A copy of the resolution 
approving the urban renewal plan will need to be sent from Lincoln County to the Newport Urban Renewal 
Agency.  Upon receipt of the necessary approval of both the City of Newport City Council and the Lincoln 
County Board of Commissioners, the Fifth Amendment will need to be recorded with the Lincoln County 
Clerk. 

69



 
 
Page 3. Ordinance No.     ____        (Substantial Amendment 5 to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan and Report) 

 
THE CITY OF NEWPORT ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  Adoption of Substantial Amendment 5 to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan. 
 
Substantial Amendment 5 to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan as attached in Exhibit "A" is hereby 
adopted.  
 
Section 2.  Adoption of Report as Additional Findings. 
 
The Council adopts the Report attached as Exhibit "B" as additional findings in support of its decision to 
adopt Substantial Amendment 5 to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan. 
 
 

 
Date adopted on initial vote and read by title only:    __________________ 
 
Date adopted on final roll call vote:    __________________ 
 
Signed by the Mayor on ________________, 2009. 
 
                       
___________________________________ 
William D. Bain, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Margaret Hawker, City Recorder 

70



 

 

 

 
  

 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENT FIVE TO THE SOUTH BEACH URBAN 
RENEWAL PLAN 

 
 
 

 
Prepared for: 

 
City of Newport 

169 SW Coast Highway 
Newport, Oregon 97365 

 
 
 

September, 2008 
 

Adopted by Ordinance No. _______ by the Newport City Council on_____, 2008. 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 
 

The Benkendorf Associates Corp. Johnson Gardner, LLC 
2701 NW Vaughn, Suite 461 319 SW Washington, Suite 1020 

Portland, Oregon 97210 Portland, Oregon 97204 

71



 

 
 

 
Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                1                                           The Benkendorf Associates Corp        September 2008 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

 

 URBAN RENEWAL PLAN - TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

I.  INTRODUCTION.................................................................................................2 
A. EXISTING SOUTH BEACH URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AND REPORT.......................2 
B. MINOR AND SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENTS I-IV ...............................................3 
C. STATEMENT OF PURPOSE .........................................................................5 
D. EFFECTIVE PERIOD OF THE PLAN AND AMENDMENT.......................................5 

 

                                                      II.  OUTLINE OF PROJECT AND REDVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES ...............................6 
A. TYPES OF PROJECTS................................................................................6 
B. URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS .....................................................................6 
C. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSITION OF REAL PROPERTY......................................7 
 

III.  METHODS OF FINANCING ..............................................................................12 
                   A.    GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF F INANCING METHODS ........................................ 12 

B. SELF LIQUIDATION OF COSTS OF PROJECTS ............................................... 12 
C. PRIOR INDEBTNESS................................................................................. 12 
D. DEBT MANAGEMENT ............................................................................... 13   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

72



 

 
 

 
Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                2                                           The Benkendorf Associates Corp        September 2008 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

 

I.                                                                                                    INTRODUCTION 

 

The City of Newport has two urban renewal districts; one of each on the 
north and south sides of Yaquina Bay. Urban renewal has played a vital 
role in the improvement and redevelopment of the City north of the Bay 
and in the development of South Beach, especially the Aquarium and 
Wastewater Treatment Plant.  

 
In 2004/05, the City prepared the Employment Lands and Conceptual 
Land Use Planning Project for the South Beach Neighborhood. The plan 
proposed major changes to the Comprehensive Plan including the 
addition of 223 acres to the Urban Growth Boundary, decreasing the 
amount of residential acres and increasing the land areas for new 
institutional, commercial and industrial uses. In addition, improvements to 
the automobile and pedestrian circulation system and utility systems were 
also proposed. This plan in addition to a Storm Water Master Plan and 
draft Transportation System Plan update provide the planning and 
implementation framework for South Beach. All of the projects identified in 
these plans will require substantial public dollars to accomplish. The urban 
renewal agency can best facilitate the design and construction of the 
urban projects proposed in this Fifth South Beach Urban Renewal Plan 
Amendment.  

A.   EXISTING SOUTH BEACH URBAN RENEWAL PLAN AND REPORT 

The South Beach Urban Renewal Plan was adopted on September 12, 
1983. The Plan was intended to serve as an implementation vehicle for 
the South Beach neighborhood. South Beach was included in the City’s 
Urban Growth Boundary(UGB) as a part of the Newport Comprehensive 
Plan which was adopted in 1980. The UGB was drawn “to encompass 
those areas suitable for urban growth, where full urban services and 
facilities can be efficiently provided to facilitate orderly urban expansion.”  

 
The Plan included specific objectives relative to: 

 
§ Preserving forest, water, wildlife and other natural resources 
§ Identifying sites for public uses such as the OSU Marine Science 

Center 
§ Completing a Port facilitated marine recreation area  
§ Encouraging marine oriented activities on the northern Shorelands 
§ Assuring the development of complementary uses adjacent to the 

Airport 
§ Planning new sewer, water and transportation capacity and 

73



 

 
 

 
Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                3                                           The Benkendorf Associates Corp        September 2008 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

 

§ Allocating a major part of South Beach to heavy commercial and 
light industrial uses.  

 
To qualify the area for urban renewal, the Plan specified the conditions of 
blight within the neighborhood such as: irregular parcels of land, 
inadequate access to properties, inadequate utility service, drainage 
problems and the stagnation and under utilization of land resources. See 
South Beach Urban Renewal District Map on the following page. Many of 
these conditions continue to exist in the South Beach area and are 
described in more detail in paragraph C. Statement of Purpose below. 

B. MINOR AND SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENTS I - IV 

Since the completion of the Urban Renewal Plan in 1983, the Urban 
Renewal Agency has executed one minor (Amendment 3) and three 
substantial amendments (1,2, and 4). The purpose and date of adoption of 
each amendment is noted below.  
 
Amendment I  Newport Urban Renewal Agency  April 8, 1987 
    Lincoln County Commission Feb 25, 1987 

 

Provides a project outline for: 
§ Site acquisition of the public viewing aquarium, 
§ Land acquisition for Highway 101 access roads.  
§ Site acquisition and construction of the Wastewater Treatment 

Plant 
§ Airport frontage road improvements, and   
§ Site acquisition and construction of an Exhibition Building.  

 
Amendment II Newport Urban Renewal Agency   October 14, 1987  
   Lincoln County Commission      September 16, 1987 
 
Deletes two land areas from the District.  
§ South Beach State Park/South Jetty area (411.16 acres)  
§ Newport Airport and a portion of forested land north of the airport. 

(565.14 acres)  
§ Total area removed from the Urban Renewal District: 976.30 acres  

 
 
 
 

74



 

 
 

 
Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                4                                           The Benkendorf Associates Corp        September 2008 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

75



 

 
 

 
Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                5                                           The Benkendorf Associates Corp        September 2008 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

 

 
Amendment III (Minor)  Newport Urban Renewal Agency      

September 11, 1991 
   
Proposes to finance the Plan through tax increment financing and that no 
bonded indebtedness shall be issued after December 31 2010. Defines 
Substantial Amendment as equivalent to a Major Amendment and defines 
Minor Amendments. 
 
Amendment 4  Newport Urban Renewal Agency May 13, 1998 
   Lincoln County Commission April 29, 1998 
 
Established a maximum level of indebtedness in the amount of 
$38,750,000 and selected Option “One” for the method to collect ad 
valorem property taxes. 

C. STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

The purpose of the City of Newport’s substantial amendment to the South 
Beach Urban Renewal Plan is to reduce or eliminate the blighted 
conditions in the district and extend the effective period of the plan from 
2010 to 2020. The blighted conditions in the district include: 

 
§ Sub-Standard street improvements, rights of way and traffic 

signalization and management.  
§ Incomplete pedestrian/bicycle circulation systems and Tsunami 

evacuation routes.  
§ Inadequate water storage capacity and distribution lines.  
§ Under sized or absent sanitary sewer collection service lines. 
§ Incomplete winter storm water management systems 
§ Inadequate neighborhood recreation facilities and open space.  

 
The proposed projects identified in Section II of the Plan have been 
specifically selected to eliminate or mitigate the blighting conditions noted. 

D. EFFECTIVE PERIOD OF THE PLAN AND AMENDMENT 

The third amendment to the Urban Renewal Plan established December 
31, 2010 as the date after which no bonded indebtedness shall be issued.  

 
If the projects identified in this amendment, and any additional projects 
which may be added to the Plan are completed earlier, and all 
indebtedness is paid, the Agency will take action to terminate the Plan.  

76



 

 
 

 
Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                6                                           The Benkendorf Associates Corp        September 2008 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

 

 

II. OUTLINE OF PROJECT AND REDEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 

A. TYPES OF PROJECTS 

The projects proposed as a part of this Amendment are planned to 
encourage new and redevelopment of commercial, industrial and 
residential property. In order to achieve this objective, the following 
categories of projects have been identified through several detailed land 
use and transportation plans, utility master plans, and the public 
involvement process utilized to prepare this Amendment.   

 
§ Streets, bicycle facilities, sidewalks and rights of way acquisition 
§ Utilities including: water distribution and supply, sanitary sewer 

lines, storm water management and electric power lines. 
§ Acquisition of open space and development of recreational 

facilities, trails and tsunami evacuation routes.  
§ Specific programs to encourage private investment such as 

pedestrian oriented commercial streets, improvements to public 
rights of way such as landscaping, signage and interpretive 
markers and public rights of way improvements such as paving, 
sidewalks, landscaping and lighting on residential streets.  

 
These improvements may occur within public rights of way, easements or 
on public property. The Newport Urban Renewal Agency will work with 
public and private utilities and property owners and developers to make 
the necessary modifications and adjustments to implement the objectives 
of this plan Amendment. 

B. URBAN RENEWAL PROJECTS 

The following is a summary of the projects which are listed in detail by 
phase in the Urban Renewal Report. The types of projects include: 

       
§ Public Rights of Way including streets, bicycle facilities, sidewalks 

and acquisition of public rights of way or easements. These 
projects have been designed to improve north/south vehicular and 
pedestrian circulation east and west of Highway 101 and to improve 
access and egress to the highway. Several projects are designed to 
improve the overall qualities of specific commercial and residential 
streets.  

§ Utility projects have been identified and coordinated with the 
proposed street improvements. Several projects are related to 
providing water and sanitary service to properties adjacent to or in 
close proximity to Highway 101. New sanitary sewer collection lines 

77



 

 
 

 
Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                7                                           The Benkendorf Associates Corp        September 2008 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

 

are proposed for the Henderson Creek and Airport locations within 
the district.  

 
Two improvements are proposed to facilitate water pressure and 
supply and include a new under-crossing of Yaquina Bay and 
construction of the King Ridge Water Reservoir.  

 
§ In order to improve the quality of the residential and commercial 

environment, new neighborhood park acquisition and development, 
open space acquisition, street trees, street furniture and 
landscaping are proposed. Additional trails and identification and 
improvements to tsunami evacuation routes will be constructed in 
association with the open space and natural amenities such as 
wetlands of South Beach. A gateway structure, interpretive signage 
and attendant pedestrian, bicycle circulation and landscaping at the 
south side of the bridge is also proposed.  

 
§ A wetland mitigation banking program is proposed to identify 

opportunities for the acquisition of wetland mitigation credits to 
facilitate future projects that may have adverse impacts on 
wetlands and that require mitigation. The program may be used to 
help acquire, conserve and enhance existing wetland systems that 
could be restored to a high quality in areas where the wetland 
system is degraded and conservation of those wetlands is 
important and the restoration or enhancement of those wetlands 
could generate wetland mitigation credits. .  

 
§ Strategic acquisition of specific properties to facilitate economic 

development, provide complimentary community facilities and 
incentives for developers to provide affordable housing is proposed. 
An example of a complimentary community facility is the proposed 
aquatic center that may be located in the South Beach Urban 
Renewal District. As noted below, a minor plan amendment will be 
required following the identification of the parcel to be acquired for 
these purposes.  

C. ACQUISITION AND DISPOSITION OF REAL PROPERTY 

1. ACQUISITION 

The Urban Renewal Agency may acquire key parcels of land in the 
Renewal Area in order to develop and expand public rights of way, 
create parks and open space or to encourage the redevelopment or 
reuse of commercial or industrial properties. The first Amendment 
to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan in April 1987, and adopted 

78



 

 
 

 
Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                8                                           The Benkendorf Associates Corp        September 2008 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

 

by the agency, provided for the acquisition of property. “Plan 
requires amendment to permit acquisition of property other than 
roads and utilities or relocation of residences or businesses.”  

 
Land Acquisition for Public Improvements and Facilities – The 
agency may acquire real property for public improvements and 
facilities authorized in the Plan by any legal means, including 
eminent domain, without amendment of the Plan. 

 
Land Acquisition for Private Redevelopment – The agency may 
acquire real property by willing conveyance or by any other means 
including eminent domain, for redevelopment by private parties only 
after adoption of a Minor Amendment of the Plan identifying the 
property.  Such amendment shall include the anticipated disposition 
of the property, whether by retention or resale together with an 
estimated time schedule for such acquisition and disposition.   

2. DISPOSITION 

The Agency may make land in the redevelopment area available to 
private developers or to public bodies at a value determined by the 
Agency to be its fair reuse value in order that it may be developed 
for the purposes specified in the Newport Urban Renewal Plan 
Amendment Five, and in accordance with applicable City zoning 
and code requirements. Real property may be conveyed by the 
Agency to the City or other public bodies without charge. 

 
The Agency shall reserve such powers and controls in the 
disposition and development documents, as may be necessary, to 
prevent transfer, retention, or use of the property for speculative 
purposes, and to ensure that development is carried out pursuant 
to the Newport Urban Renewal Plan. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

79



 

 
 

 
Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                9                                           The Benkendorf Associates Corp        September 2008 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

80



 

 
 

 
Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                10                                           The Benkendorf Associates Corp        September 2008 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

81



 

 
 

 
Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                11                                           The Benkendorf Associates Corp        September 2008 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

82



 

 
 

 
Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                12                                           The Benkendorf Associates Corp        September 2008 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

 

 

                                                                 III. METHODS OF FINANCING 

A. GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF FINANCING METHODS 

The Plan Amendment will be financed using tax increment revenues. state 
or federal grants, local improvement districts, reimbursement districts and 
systems development fees. Revenues obtained by the Agency will be 
used to pay or repay costs, expenses, advancements and indebtedness 
incurred in planning or undertaking project activities or otherwise 
exercising any of the powers granted by ORS Chapter 457 in connection 
with the implementation of this Plan. 

B. SELF LIQUIDATION OF COSTS OF PROJECTS 

The Plan Amendment may be financed, in whole or in part, by tax 
increment revenues allocated to the Agency as provided in ORS 457.420 
through ORS 457.450. The ad valorem taxes, if any, levied by a taxing 
district in which all or a portion of the Area is located, shall be divided as 
provided in section 1c, Article IX of the Oregon Constitution, and ORS 
457.440. Amounts collected pursuant to ORS 457.440 shall be deposited 
into the non segregated tax collections account and distributed to the 
Agency based upon the distribution schedule established under ORS 
311.390.  
 
The Agency will use such revenues for the repayment of indebtedness 
issued to finance urban renewal projects. The maximum amount of 
indebtedness that may be issued or incurred under the Plan Amendment 
is $38,750,000, assuming a debt-coverage ratio of 1.35. This amount is 
the principal of such indebtedness and does not include interest or 
indebtedness incurred to refund or refinance existing indebtedness.  

C. PRIOR INDEBTEDNESS 

Any indebtedness already incurred by the Agency in connection with the 
existing Plan and prior planning efforts may be repaid from tax increment 
revenues from the Area when and if such funds are available.  The debt 
service associated with the prior indebtedness has been accounted for in 
the financial analysis for this Plan Amendment. 

 

83



 

 
 

 
Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                13                                           The Benkendorf Associates Corp        September 2008 

City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

 

 

D. DEBT MANAGEMENT 

The Agency will not issue debt unless it reasonably projects that 
repayment of all outstanding debt will occur no later than June 30, 2027. 
The Agency therefore anticipates terminating the imposition of urban 
renewal taxes in FY 2026/2027. 

 

84



 Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                                                                 The Benkendorf Associates Corp.  September 2008 

 City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

14 

EXHIBIT "B" 
 

 URBAN RENEWAL REPORT - TABLE OF CONTENTS   

 

I.  INTRODUCTION...............................................................................................15 
II.  CITIZEN PARTICIPATION ................................................................................16 
III.  RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PROJECTS TO BE UNDERTAKEN WITH 

THE AMENDMENT AND THE EXISTING CONDITIONS IN THE AREA.................17 
IV. PROJECT COSTS AND TIMING .......................................................................18 
  A.  PROJECTS AND COST TIMING .......................................................................... 18 
  B.  ESTIMATED COMPLETION DATE........................................................................ 21 

V. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AMENDMENT..................................................22 
  A.  ANTICIPATED TAX INCREMENT FUNDS ............................................................... 22 
  B.  ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF MONEY REQUIRED UNDER ORS  457 .............................. 23 
  C.  ANTICIPATED YEAR IN WHICH INDEPTEDNESS WILL BE RETIRED............................. 24 
  D.  PROJECT REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES ......................................................... 24 

 E.  STATEMENT OF F ISCAL IMPACT ON OTHER JURISDICTIONS UNDER ORS   
        457.420-457.440......................................................................................... 25 
 F.  IMPACTS ON TAXPAYERS................................................................................. 27 
 

APPENDIX ...........................................................................................................28 
A. PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATES 

1. GATEWAY 
2. COMMERICAL STREET 
3. RESIDENTIAL STREET 

B. CITY OF NEWPORT ORDINANCE NO. 1341 ADOPTING THE SOUTH BEACH 

URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 
C. COUNTY OF LINCOLN RESOLUTION NO. 83-26-9 IN THE MATTER OF THE 

ADOPTION OF THE SOUTH BEACH URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 
D. LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS WITHDRAWING THE A IRPORT AND THE STATE PARK 

FROM THE URBAN RENEWAL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

85



 Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                                                                 The Benkendorf Associates Corp.  September 2008 

 City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

15 

 
 

 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 

A Supplemental Report was prepared and included as a part of 
establishing the South Beach Urban Renewal District in 1983. The 
report included an Environmental Assessment and a 
documentation of the physical, social and economic environment. 
The five tables in the report included: 

 
§ Estimated Capital Improvement Costs 
§ Assessed Valuation (Roll 1981-1982) 
§ Tax Code Area Consolidated Tax Rates 
§ Tax Received by Individual Taxing Districts 
§ New Construction Estimates 

 
As referenced in the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan 
Amendment, new projects and their costs and a new financial 
analysis, including the impact of this Amendment on individual 
taxing districts, are described in the following Sections IV and V.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

86



 Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                                                                 The Benkendorf Associates Corp.  September 2008 

 City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

16 

 
 
 
 

II. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

The City of Newport appointed a South Beach Urban Renewal Plan 
Update Ad Hoc Advisory Committee to assist the agency with the 
preparation of Amendment Five to the Plan. The committee was 
convened in April, 2008 and conducted its last meeting in 
September, 2008. Residents and business owners in South Beach 
and other residents of the community also attended the committee 
meetings. 

 
In addition, the City conducted a public meeting in June, 2008 to 
review the purpose of the Amendment, the types of projects 
planned to be implemented and the preliminary revenue forecasts. 
A questionnaire was distributed to those in attendance and 17 
surveys were returned. Those surveys that identified a preference 
on the extension or sunset of the Plan, generally supported the 
extension of the plan. Of the projects receiving a level of support, 
the top three projects included Highway 101 improvements 
(including intersections), storm drainage improvements and 
neighborhood park/open space acquisition and development.  

 
The committee members and the general public had additional 
opportunities to comment on the proposed Amendment at public 
hearings before the Planning Commission, Newport Urban 
Renewal Agency, Newport City Council and Lincoln County Board 
of Commissioners.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

87



 Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                                                                 The Benkendorf Associates Corp.  September 2008 

 City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

17 

 
 
 
 
 
 

III.  RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PROJECTS TO BE                             

UNDERTAKEN  WITH THE  AMENDMENT AND THE EXISTING            

CONDITIONS IN THE AREA                                                                       

The physical and economic conditions described in the original 
Environmental Assessment and the Supplemental Report have 
improved within the past twenty five (25) years. However, as noted 
in the Plan section of this Amendment, many areas remain deficient 
relative to vehicular and pedestrian circulation, utility services 
especially storm water management, and public recreation and 
open space.  

 
The importance of ameliorating these conditions was supported by 
the Ad Hoc Committee and the public comment received by the 
Urban Renewal Agency.  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

88



 Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                                                                 The Benkendorf Associates Corp.  September 2008 

 City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

18 

 

 

 

IV.  PROJECT COSTS AND TIMING 

A.  PROJECTS AND COST ESTIMATES 

      1.  Phase 1 – 2009/12 
 

        PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY                               Cost Estimate       UR Portion 
     Streets 

§ 40th & 101 Intersection (Committed)     $1,000,000*         $500,000* 
§ Ash St. Design & Construct           500,000*           500,000* 
§ Coho/Brant Area – Plan and Design          100,000*            100,000* 
§ Coho/Brant Area – Construct           850,000           850,000 
§ SE 35th & Ferry Slip Road           464,000           390,000 

 
Sidewalks 
§ OSU Dr. to Marine Science Center          100,000*           100,000* 

 
Acquisition/Development 
§ TSP Projects - right of way            500,000            500,000 

 
                                                            UTILITIES 
     Water 

§ Hwy 101 – 40th to 50th          350,000*            350,000* 
§ Sanitary Sewer line-same ROW         300,000            300,000 

 
                                                            PUBLIC AMENITIES 

§ Neighborhood Park/Open Space Site  
Acquisition               500,000              500,000 

 
                                                            ACQUISITION/DEVELOPMENT                                  0           0 
                                                              
                                                            COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMS       0           0  
 

        SPECIAL PROJECT IDEAS 
§ Wetland Mitigation Bank                        200,000              200,000 
§ Trails – easement acquisitions          100,000            100,000 
§ Tsunami Evacuation Route  

Improvements                                             100,000            100,000 
      

        Total:                     $3,014,000       $2,940,000 
 
                                                            Revenue Estimate (7.1% growth)                      $2,940,000 
 

         Note:  *Projects in 2008/09 Agency Budget not included in Total 
       

89



 Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                                                                 The Benkendorf Associates Corp.  September 2008 

 City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

19 

         2.  Phase 2 – 2013/16 
 

        PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY       Cost Estimate       UR Portion  
     Streets 

§ 35th St. – 101 to Ferry Slip Road            $750,000             $750,000 
Commercial Street Prototype 

§ Anchor Way 35th to 40th                     750,000          750,000 
§ 40th & 101 Traffic Signal          506,000               506,000 

 
Sidewalks 
§ OSU Dr.(Abalone to Ferry Slip Rd)          67,500            67,500 
§ Ferry Slip Rd (29th to SE OSU Dr.)          91,000            91,000 

Acquisition 
 
Acquisition/Development 
*      TSP Projects - right of way          250,000           250,000 

 
Existing Street/ROW improvements including: 
paving, storm water, pedestrian/bicycle paths 
and landscaping          350,000          350,000 

 
                                                           UTILITIES 

Sewer 
§ 101 Gravity line south to Airport       1,000,000            1,000,000 

 
Utility Lines 
§ Bury existing/new lines underground         300,000           300,000 

 
                                                           PUBLIC AMENITIES 

§ Neighborhood Park Development         350,000             350,000 
§ Neighborhood Park/Open Space  

Acquisition             200,000                200,000 
 
                                                           ACQUISITION/DEVELOPMENT  

§ Strategic Site Acquisition for Re-Use        250,000              250,000 
§ Site Prep for Re-Use          100,000             100,000 
§ Strategic Site Acquisition for Economic  

Development, Community Facilities and 
Affordable Housing           500,000            500,000 

 
                                                            SPECIAL PROJECT IDEAS 

§ South Jetty Trail  ($150k State Parks)       300,000            150,000 
§ Tsunami Evacuation Route  

Improvements              100,000            100,000 
§ Wetland Mitigation Bank            100,000            100,000 

 
            Total:                                  $5,964,500       $5,814,500 
 

        Revenue Estimate (7.1% growth)          $5,880,000 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

90



 Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                                                                 The Benkendorf Associates Corp.  September 2008 

 City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

20 

      3.  Phase 3 – 2017/20 
 

       PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY         Cost Estimate       UR Portion 
     Streets 

§ 50th & 101 Intersection Improvements   $1,450,000        $1,450,000 
 
Sidewalks 
§ Abalone St. (OSU Dr. to 101)           100,000             100,000 
§ 35th St. (Ferry Slip to Estuary turn)           337,500             200,000 
 
Acquisition/Development             250,000               250,000 
TSP Projects right-of-way 
 
Existing Street/ROW improvements including:  
paving, storm water, pedestrian/bicycle  
paths and landscaping             3,000,000           3,000,000 

  
       UTILITIES 

     Water 
§ 12” Bay Under-crossing Pipeline             995,000             795,000 
§ King Ridge Reservoir (15% of Cost)             196,200             196,200 
 
Sewer 
§ Henderson Creek Piping   280,000            280,000 
§ Henderson Creek Lift Station   323,000            323,000 
 
Storm 
§ Project 5a – Redirect Drainage          1,480,000          1,480,000 
 
Utility Lines 
§ Bury existing/new lines underground  200,000            200,000 

 
      PUBLIC AMENITIES        

Landscape 
§ Street Tree and Public Open Space  

Planting                                                    100,000             100,000 
§ Street Furniture      50,000  50,000 

 
Gateway to South Beach    700,000            100,000 
Neighborhood Park/Open Space Acquisition  200,000            200,000 

 
       ACQUISITION/DEVELOPMENT              0           0  
  

                                                          COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMS 
§ Fund Storefront Facade Loan/Grant  

Program                   100,000            100,000 
 

      SPECIAL PROJECT IDEAS 
§ Trails – Acquire and Develop  300,000            300,000 
§ Tsunami Evacuation Route Improvements 200,000            200,000 
§ Wetland Mitigation Bank    100,000            100,000 

 
       Total:           $10,361,700       $9,424,200 

 
       Revenue Estimate (7.1% growth)                       $9,500,000 

Grand Total for Phases 1 through 3 Projects $19, 340,200      $18,178,700 

91



 Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                                                                 The Benkendorf Associates Corp.  September 2008 

 City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

21 

B. ESTIMATED COMPLETION DATE 

The projects planned to be accomplished within the next twelve 
years are expected to be awarded no later then December 31, 
2020 and completed in a timely manner. The projects are divided in 
to three phases. The agency may adjust the design and 
construction of specific projects depending on the needs of the 
community and the urban renewal district as a whole.  

 
§ Phase 1 2009-2012 
§ Phase 2 2013-2016 
§ Phase 3 2017-2020 

 
The three phases will enable the agency to plan and implement the 
financial plan in Section V.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

92



 Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                                                                 The Benkendorf Associates Corp.  September 2008 

 City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

22 

V.  FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AMENDMENT 

A. ANTICIPATED TAX INCREMENT FUNDS 

As stated in Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 457 (ORS 457), tax 
increment funds are anticipated from growth in assessed value 
within the Area over the course of the Plan. Growth in assessed 
value is projected to occur through appreciation in property values 
(“appreciation percentage”), limited to no more than three percent 
annually, and through changes in property that add value that is 
“excepted” from the three percent limit. Such “exception value” 
results from factors such as subdivision or rezoning of land and 
from construction of improvements.  
 
Table V-1 shows the projections of growth in tax increment funds.  
The table shows total expected tax increment revenue. The 
projections are based on reasonable expectations of near-term 
future development and have been prepared utilizing conservative 
assumptions about residential and commercial development that 
are likely to occur in the South Beach Urban Renewal District.  The 
projections assume average annual growth of 7.1%, the average 
growth rate in the SB-URD from 1983 to 2008.  The growth rate 
assumes a temporary 75% reduction due to the current residential 
development slowdown.   The projections also assume a tax 
collection rate of 94.2%. 
 

93



 Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                                                                 The Benkendorf Associates Corp.  September 2008 

 City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

23 

Table V-1: 
Urban Renewal Area Tax Increment Revenue Estimates 

Plan Year
URD Incremental 

Revenue
2009-10 $1,760,676
2010-11 $1,857,040
2011-12 $1,988,139
2012-13 $1,971,358
2013-14 $2,110,528
2014-15 $2,259,522
2015-16 $2,419,034
2016-17 $2,589,807
2017-18 $2,772,636
2018-19 $2,968,372
2019-20 $2,963,119
2020-21 $3,172,303
2021-22 $3,396,253
2022-23 $3,636,014
2023-24 $3,892,701
2024-25 $4,167,508
2025-26 $4,461,716
2026-27 $4,776,694

Source: Lincoln County Assessor's Office and
Johnson Gardner.  

 

Unlike many urban renewal districts in Oregon, the SB-URD 
geographically spans six distinct property tax codes rather than 
one. For instance, the vast majority of assessed value in the District 
is within City of Newport jurisdiction (85%), but that portion only 
represents two of the six tax codes and combinations of local public 
service providers. Therefore, there are six different Measure 50 SB-
URD tax code rates and six different projected assessed values.  
The tax increment projections are based on the combined value of 
the property tax codes and applicable tax rates for each affected 
taxing jurisdiction. 
 

B. ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF MONEY REQUIRED UNDER ORS 457 

Extending the SB-URD Plan will expand the District’s borrowing 
capacity.  Total expected increment revenue that is not committed 
to previous incurred debt, through 2027, is $41,647,319.  This 
revenue will be used to repay indebtedness incurred to finance the 
projects in this Plan Amendment.  Table V-2 below shows expected 
increment revenue and debt service schedule for the Plan 
Amendment. 
 
 

94



 Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                                                                 The Benkendorf Associates Corp.  September 2008 

 City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

24 

 
 

Table V-2: 
Projected Revenues, Debt Service and Other Expenditures 

Remaining 
Uncommitted 

Revenue

Remaining 
Uncommitted 

Revenue

Remaining 
Uncommitted 

Revenue

Remaining 
Uncommitted 

Revenue

Plan Year
(Annual 
Revenue)

Phase I Debt 
Service

(Annual Rev. + 
Ending Balance)

Phase II Debt 
Service

(Annual Rev. + 
Ending Balance)

Phase III Debt 
Service

(Annual Rev. + 
Ending Balance)

2009-10 $1,760,676 $1,294,408 $466,267 $466,267 $466,267 $466,267
2010-11 $1,857,040 $1,272,642 $584,398 $400,000 $650,665 $650,665 $650,665
2011-12 $1,988,139 $1,253,790 $734,349 $400,000 $985,014 $985,014 $985,014
2012-13 $1,971,358 $1,249,608 $721,750 $400,000 $1,306,764 $1,306,764 $1,306,764
2013-14 $2,110,528 $1,253,135 $857,393 $400,000 $1,764,157 $800,000 $964,157 $964,157
2014-15 $2,259,522 $1,251,869 $1,007,653 $400,000 $2,371,809 $800,000 $771,809 $771,809
2015-16 $2,419,034 $1,243,042 $1,175,992 $400,000 $3,147,801 $800,000 $747,801 $747,801
2016-17 $2,589,807 $976,587 $1,613,220 $400,000 $4,361,021 $800,000 $1,161,021 $1,161,021
2017-18 $2,772,636 $785,648 $1,986,988 $400,000 $5,948,010 $800,000 $1,948,010 $1,300,000 $648,010
2018-19 $2,968,372 $467,685 $2,500,687 $400,000 $8,048,697 $800,000 $3,248,697 $1,300,000 $648,697
2019-20 $2,963,119 $467,685 $2,495,434 $400,000 $10,144,131 $800,000 $4,544,131 $1,300,000 $644,131
2020-21 $3,172,303 $0 $3,172,303 $13,316,434 $800,000 $6,916,434 $1,300,000 $1,716,434
2021-22 $3,396,253 $0 $3,396,253 $16,712,687 $800,000 $9,512,687 $1,300,000 $3,012,687
2022-23 $3,636,014 $0 $3,636,014 $20,348,701 $800,000 $12,348,701 $1,300,000 $4,548,701
2023-24 $3,892,701 $0 $3,892,701 $24,241,402 $16,241,402 $1,300,000 $7,141,402
2024-25 $4,167,508 $0 $4,167,508 $28,408,910 $20,408,910 $1,300,000 $10,008,910
2025-26 $4,461,716 $0 $4,461,716 $32,870,626 $24,870,626 $1,300,000 $13,170,626
2026-27 $4,776,694 $0 $4,776,694 $37,647,319 $29,647,319 $1,300,000 $16,647,319

Term of Loan (Years) 10                 10                  10                    
Total Amount Borrowed $2,944,035 $5,888,070 $9,568,113

Notes:   1/ Incremental revenue based on total projected tax revenue multiplied by 94.2% average collection rate.
          2/ Existing debt provided by City of Newport.

Source: Lincoln County Assessor's Office, City of Newport, and Johnson Gardner.

URD 
Incremental 
Revenue 1/

Existing Debt 
2/

 
 

C. ANTICIPATED YEAR IN WHICH INDEBTEDNESS WILL BE RETIRED 
 

Table V-2 shows the anticipated schedule debt payment for existing 
debt and the Plan Amendment.  All debts are scheduled to be 
retired by year 2027. 
 

D. PROJECTED REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
 

Table V-2 shows the annual anticipated revenues and expenditures 
for the Plan Amendment. The revenues result from tax increment 
revenue that is not already committed to financing existing debt.  
Total debt service for existing debt totals to $11,516,100.  
Expenditures are based on potential debt schedules to finance the 
projects described in Section VII of this Plan Amendment.  The total 
project costs and the Plan’s share of those costs are also shown in 
Section VII.  Revenues other than tax increment revenues have not 
been estimated for purposes of conservative plan revenue 
estimates. 

 

95



 Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                                                                 The Benkendorf Associates Corp.  September 2008 

 City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

25 

E. STATEMENT OF FISCAL IMPACT ON OTHER JURISDICTIONS UNDER 

ORS 457.420-457.440 
 

The use of tax increment financing creates a fiscal impact on the 
taxing districts (e.g. the City, the County, the Community College) 
that levy taxes within the Area. This impact consists of those 
districts foregoing the taxes that would have been levied on the  
increase in assessed value within the Area while tax increment 
financing is in effect.  
 
In order to project these impacts, it is necessary to estimate the 
growth in assessed value that would have occurred without the 
Plan. The Plan’s projects are anticipated to create assessed value 
growth that would not occur but for the Plan. Therefore the taxes 
that are foregone are those resulting from projected development 
without the public improvements developed under the Plan. 
 
Table V-3 shows the revenues foregone by the affected taxing 
districts, through 2027. The revenues foregone by the taxing 
districts equal their permanent tax rates times the projected 
incremental assessed value, plus the tax rates associated with 
general obligation bonds approved by voters before October 2001 
times the bonding district’s incremental assessed value. Note that 
the property tax revenues foregone by the Lincoln County School 
District do not result in revenue losses to the School District 
because of the system of state funding of K-12 education. The 
impacts are shown to illustrate what they would be if the school 
funding system is materially changed and property tax revenues 
become directly relevant. 
 
The tax increment revenues terminate after 2027, and the 
additional revenues that are available to these taxing districts are 
projected to repay the districts for revenues foregone during the 
Plan. 
 
 
 

96



 Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                                                                 The Benkendorf Associates Corp.  September 2008   

 City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

26 

 
 
 

Table V -3: 
Projected Property Tax Revenues Foregone  

City of 
Newport

Lincoln 
County 
School

Lincoln 
County

Newport 
RFPD

Pacific 
Communities 

Hospital

Lincoln 
County 
Library

Oregon 
Coast 

Community 
College

Lincoln County 
Transportation

Lincoln 
County 

Extension
Linn-Benton-
Lincoln ESD

Port of 
Newport

Water-Seal 
Rock

Total 
Increment

Plan Year
2009-10 $689,466 $608,190 $320,051 $12,891 $39,227 $3,329 $19,013 $10,540 $4,880 $32,994 $17,812 $2,281 $1,760,676
2010-11 $738,139 $651,126 $326,727 $13,801 $41,997 $3,564 $20,355 $11,284 $5,225 $35,323 $7,055 $2,442 $1,857,040
2011-12 $790,249 $697,093 $349,793 $14,776 $44,961 $3,816 $21,792 $12,081 $5,594 $37,817 $7,553 $2,614 $1,988,139
2012-13 $783,328 $651,879 $374,487 $15,819 $48,135 $4,085 $23,331 $12,933 $5,989 $40,487 $8,087 $2,799 $1,971,358
2013-14 $838,627 $697,899 $400,924 $16,935 $51,534 $4,374 $24,978 $13,847 $6,411 $43,345 $8,658 $2,997 $2,110,528
2014-15 $897,831 $747,168 $429,227 $18,131 $55,172 $4,683 $26,741 $14,824 $6,864 $46,405 $9,269 $3,208 $2,259,522
2015-16 $961,214 $799,914 $459,529 $19,411 $59,066 $5,013 $28,629 $15,871 $7,349 $49,681 $9,923 $3,435 $2,419,034
2016-17 $1,029,071 $856,385 $491,969 $20,781 $63,236 $5,367 $30,650 $16,991 $7,867 $53,188 $10,624 $3,677 $2,589,807
2017-18 $1,101,719 $916,842 $526,700 $22,248 $67,700 $5,746 $32,814 $18,190 $8,423 $56,943 $11,374 $3,937 $2,772,636
2018-19 $1,179,496 $981,567 $563,883 $23,819 $72,480 $6,152 $35,130 $19,475 $9,017 $60,963 $12,177 $4,215 $2,968,372
2019-20 $1,047,956 $1,050,861 $603,691 $25,500 $77,597 $6,586 $37,610 $20,849 $9,654 $65,267 $13,036 $4,512 $2,963,119
2020-21 $1,121,937 $1,125,047 $646,309 $27,301 $83,075 $7,051 $40,265 $22,321 $10,336 $69,874 $13,957 $4,831 $3,172,303
2021-22 $1,201,141 $1,204,471 $691,935 $29,228 $88,939 $7,548 $43,108 $23,897 $11,065 $74,807 $14,942 $5,172 $3,396,253
2022-23 $1,285,936 $1,289,501 $740,783 $31,291 $95,218 $8,081 $46,151 $25,584 $11,846 $80,088 $15,997 $5,537 $3,636,014
2023-24 $1,376,718 $1,380,534 $793,079 $33,500 $101,940 $8,652 $49,409 $27,390 $12,683 $85,742 $17,126 $5,928 $3,892,701
2024-25 $1,473,908 $1,477,994 $849,067 $35,865 $109,136 $9,263 $52,897 $29,324 $13,578 $91,795 $18,335 $6,346 $4,167,508
2025-26 $1,577,959 $1,582,334 $909,007 $38,397 $116,841 $9,917 $56,632 $31,394 $14,537 $98,275 $19,629 $6,794 $4,461,716
2026-27 $1,689,356 $1,694,040 $973,179 $41,108 $125,089 $10,617 $60,630 $33,610 $15,563 $105,213 $21,015 $7,274 $4,776,694

$19,784,051 $18,412,844 $10,450,340 $440,803 $1,341,344 $113,843 $650,136 $360,405 $166,882 $1,128,209 $236,567 $77,996 $53,163,419

Notes:  Foregone revenue calculate assumes a 94.2% collection rate by all taxing districts.
   Although schoool district property tax revenues are foregone with urban renewal, there is no net loss to school funding, as established by current State of Oregon K-12 funding system. 
Source: Lincoln County Assessor's Office and Johnson Gardner.  

Foregone Revenue by Taxing District

Total Foregone Revenue 
Through 2027

 
 
 
 

 

97



 

 
 

 
 Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                    27                                                   The Benkendorf  Associates Corp        September, 2008 
 City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

 
 

 

F. IMPACTS ON TAXPAYERS  
 

The extension of financing of the Plan will not change the SB-URD’s 
impact on taxpayers.  General obligation bonds approved by voters before 
October 2001 are subject to the division of tax.  There are five such 
general obligation bonds in the SB-URD.  They are all scheduled to retire 
by 2019, prior to the previously scheduled sunset of the SB-URD.  These 
bonds will continue to be subject to the division of tax, regardless of any 
extension to the SB-URD plan.  
 
Any general obligation bonds approved after October 2001 are not subject 
to the division of tax. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

98



 

 
 

 
  Substantial Amendment Five to the South Beach Urban Renewal Plan                                   28                                The Benkendorf Associates Corp         September, 2008 
  City of Newport, Oregon Urban Renewal Agency  

 
 

 

 APPENDIX 

 

A.  PRELIMINARY COST ESTIMATES  
1.  Gateway 

         2.  Commercial Street 
         3.  Residential Street 

B.   CITY OF NEWPORT ORDINANCE NO. 1341 ADOPTING THE SOUTH BEACH        

URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 

C.  COUNTY OF LINCOLN RESOLUTION NO. 83-26-9 IN THE MATTER OF THE 

ADOPTION OF THE SOUTH BEACH URBAN RENEWAL PLAN 

D.   LEGAL DESCRIPTIONS WITHDRAWING THE AIRPORT AND THE STATE PARK 

FROM THE URBAN RENEWAL DISTRICT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



Resolution No. ____ 
Page 1 of 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEWPORT 
 

In the Matter of A Request for Concurrence 
In the Vacation of a Way of Necessity  
By the Lincoln County Board of Commissioners 
 
Findings 
 
A. The Lincoln County Circuit Court issued an Order Establishing Way of 
Necessity in Case No. 46125 (the Order).  The Order was filed on June 28, 1982.  
A copy of the Order is attached as Exhibit A, which also includes a legal description 
of the Way of Necessity.   
 
B. The Lincoln County Board of Commissioners, after a duly noticed public 
hearing, vacated the way of necessity established by the Order.  The County’s 
decision, including findings, as to the property within the Newport City limits is 
attached as Exhibit B.   
 
C. Although the City lacks original jurisdiction to vacate a way of necessity, it 
has the authority under ORS 368.361(3) to concur in findings made by a county in 
vacation proceedings that are limited to property within city limits.  The City’s 
concurrence has the effect of making the vacation by the county valid and effective 
within the city limits.   
 
D. The City Council has concluded that the vacation of the way of necessity is 
in the public interest.   
 
Based on these findings,  
 
THE CITY OF NEWPORT ORDERS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
The City Council of the City of Newport concurs in the findings of the Lincoln Board 
of Commissions shown in Exhibit B. 
 
Adopted by a _____ vote of the Newport City Council on _____________, 2008.   
 
Signed on  _____________, 2008. 
 
 
________________________________ 
William D. Bain 
Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Margaret M. Hawker 
City Recorder 

124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134


	AGENDA-2-2-09
	Binder1
	Agenda Item Summary-Food Share Special Grant Fund Request
	Food Share Request for Funds Backup Materials
	Minutes-Noon Work Session-1-20-09
	Minutes-Regular Council Mtg-1-20-09
	Minutes-Special Meeting-1-23-09
	OLCC Application-SKW Brewing
	OLCC Application-SKW Brewing-2nd Application
	OLCC Application-Western Beverage
	OLCC Application-Bay 839
	Planning Commission Applications Received
	Agenda Item Summary-Audit Presentation-2007-08
	Agenda Item Summary-Friends of the Aquatic Center
	Friends of Aquatic Center Request
	Preliminary Site Drawing-FOCAC
	Reverse 911 Information
	Agenda Item Summary-Newport Storm Basketball Request
	Urban Renewal Agenda Cover Sheet
	Minutes-Urban Renewal-1-20-09
	Agenda Item Summary-Reso-UR-5th Amend-SBUR Plan (Resolution included)
	Return to Regular Agenda Items Cover Sheet
	Agenda Item Summary-Ordinance Adopt-Amendment 5-SBUR Plan
	Ordinance-SBUR Amdmt 5-Council-2-2-09 mtg
	Exhibit A-Ordinance-SBUR Amdmt 5
	Exhibit B-Ordinance-SBUR Amdmt 5
	Exhibit B Appendix-Ordinance-SB UR Amdmt 5
	Agenda Item Summary-Garage Sales Limit-Ordinance Adopting
	Agenda Item Summary-NW Poets Conference
	Special Event-Activity Grant Fund Application-NW Poets Conference
	Agenda Item Summary-Concurrence In County Vacation of Way of Necessity
	Order Concurring in Vacation of Way of Necessity
	Way of Necessity Original Order
	Agenda Item Summary-Reso-Sale of GO Bonds-Water Treatment Plant Plus-Resolution Included




